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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the "Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2015 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) achieved a sale revenue of HK$1,277.3 million,
representing a decrease of 5.9% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year, the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company was HK$280.1 million,
representing an increase of 64.7% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. The increase in profit
was primarily attributable to the contribution from the
development and management of electronic information
technology industrial parks operating segment of the
Group. Basic earnings per share was HK13.80 cents.

KANEBERERFEEFEERZERBRAF (AR
AESEE([E5g])EM 2015848 Ra K&
EfEAR ([AEE])BERHFEEWA,277.38
EB8 T REFRBTES.9% KD R REEMNL
W A280. 1TBEEE L REFR L EL.7% -
ZaAMEREFEREAEB ZEFEEBHMESZE
BrEREEREBS T CER - EREXRRAF
A13.8078 1l -
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The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: HK2.6 cents), amounting to a total dividend of
HK$60.9 million. Subject to approval by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
dividend will be distributed on or about 29 July 2016.

In 2015, the Group has entered into agreements for the
acquisition of 95.64% equity interest in Shanghai Huahong
Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd (“Huahong”). Huahong is an
industrial leader in the design of the integrated circuit
sector in the PRC. It has a comprehensive domestic smart
card product line, with technology focusing on the design
and system development of contact, contactless and dual-
interface integrated circuit chips, which are widely used
in sectors such as social security, telecommunications,
identity authentication and financial security. The Huahong
acquisition represents a significant strategic move by
the Group in broadening its business coverage, and in
capturing a dominant position in the PRC contactless
and dual-interface integrated circuit chip markets, and
enable the Group to be well positioned to swiftly capitalise
on the enormous market opportunities created by the
development of the integrated circuit industry. The
acquisition of Huahong was completed in February 2016.

In December 2015, the Company has entered into
agreements to dispose the entire equity interest in China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd (“CEC
Technology”) to Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (“OVU") and to subscribe in cash the new ordinary
shares in OVU for the acquisition of 31.9% interest in
OVU. OVU has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and is a leading multi-theme business
parks developer which is engaging in the development
and operation of large-scale business parks with distinctive
industry themes in the PRC. The acquisition represented
extension of the investment scope of the Company in the
electronic information technology industrial parks sector to
new geographical areas in the PRC and will create synergies
between business of the Group and OVU. The acquisition
of 31.9% interest in OVU is expected to be completed in
2016.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERFRE

Looking forward, on the one hand, the Group will continue
to adhere to its independent innovation development
strategy, increase its investments in science and technology,
and actively expand into new smart card application
business such as financial security and other chip design
segments. On the other hand, it will grasp the development
opportunities arising from the integrated circuits design
sector and strive to maintain its leading position in that
sector.

Mr. Rui Xiaowu resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
non-executive director of the Company in January 2016.
Mr. Xie Qinghua also resigned as managing director and
executive director of the Company in January 2016. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to thank both of them for
their invaluable contributions over the years.

On behalf of the Board, | am delighted to welcome Mr.
Chow Chan Lum as an independent non-executive director
of the Company, Mr. Ma Yuchuan as the Vice Chairman
of the Board and an executive director of the Company
and Mr. Jiang Juncheng as a non-executive director of
the Company. The new directors, with their extensive
experience and impressive credentials, will no doubt extend
the diversity and refresh the talent base of the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
members for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
| would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
co-operation and support.

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

RERK AEE - HBEERR A T8
MABERA BRFEBEREEFFNEER
e 15 R E AL S A &R ET R B — T E A UE
SERERRATRENBERESE REECEKER
R AT B BT IAL

NEREECDHR2016F1ABIEESTETFELA
NAGERTTE BB S B E L EINN2016F1
ABIARAESAKENATESHRE KA
ERREZCRLEHMUNTIRELZBEEE
%ﬁo

AANERREFEMABLEEMELELERR
AEUFATESTRY SEItthFESS
BlERRARRATETRBMETR LT
AARFATESRE —UHTEFHFLEE
RBRMBHERE BARRBAEFTEZATE

Tt o

S AARRRES® YARRBACERS
—EMFHTERATBE N ERE RGBS T
U (IR & R B B LA TR Y & R X 158
£ T |

B
BEAR

EF78 201653 H30H

6 China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to HK$1,277.3 million, representing a
decrease of 5.9% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$280.1 million, representing
an increase of 64.7% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year, and the basic earnings
per share was HK13.80 cents (2014: HK9.55 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group's integrated circuits design operation comprises
the design of integrated circuit chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are
mainly used in sectors such as identity authentication
(identity cards), social security (social security cards) and
telecommunication (SIM cards). For the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group has obtained 24 new patents
and 34 registered integrated circuits layout designs.

In 2015, the Group responded actively to market changes,
endeavoured to overcome the adverse impact that
arose from the macro-economic growth slowdown, and
strengthened its clients’ marketing efforts to expand its
market share. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
sales volume of the Group's products increased by 6.8%
when comparing with the corresponding period of last
year. However, as market price competition was further
intensified in 2015, along with the fact that the increased
in sales volume of the Group was mainly attributable to
integrated circuit chips with a lower unit price, resulting in
a general decrease in average selling price of the products
sold in 2015 when comparing with that of 2014. Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,264.0
million, representing a decrease of 6.5% when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year. During the year
of 2015, the Group optimised its supply chain processing
flow, enhanced its budget control and management on
costs and expenses, and achieved certain reduction in its
overall operating costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$64.7 million (2014:
HK$98.1 million). As a percentage to revenue, selling and
marketing costs decreased to 5.1% for the year ended 31
December 2015 from 7.3% of the corresponding period
of last year. The decrease was mainly due to stringent cost
control measures implemented during the year.

Administrative expenses increased by 26.7% to HK$308.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase
was mainly attributable to (i) administrative expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2014 included an income
from the reversal of impairment provision for trade
receivables of HK$38.3 million (2015: HK$0.8 million); and
(ii) increase in research and development costs.

Research and development costs were HK$230.2 million in
2015 (2014: HK$214.2 million), which represented 18.2%
of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: 15.8%). Research and development during the
year primarily focused on the development of the financial
integrated circuit card chip products, development of the
telecommunication and mobile payment integrated circuit
card chip products and enhancement of key chip design
technologies and design capability.

Government grants recognised as income increased
by 78.3% to HK$112.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 resulted from more government subsidies
for research and development costs incurred in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, profit attributable
to the integrated circuits design operating segment
amounted to HK$321.2 million, representing a decrease of
1.5% when comparing with the corresponding period of
last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Electronic information technology industrial parks
operation

The Group's electronic information technology industrial
parks operation mainly comprises:

1.

Hainan Resort Software Community (/& Fg 4 A&
&) (“Hainan RSC”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by Hainan Resort Software
Community Investment and Development Co., Ltd
(BRAERRHEIREZERARAF]), an associate
company of the Group;

CEC Xi'an Industrial Park (B FRLTEXE)
("Xi'an Industrial Park”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by China Electronics Xi‘an
Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd ((F R EF %L
EXEZEREABR AT, a subsidiary of the Group;
and

CEC Beihai Industrial Park (B E Fib/8EXER)
("Beihai Industrial Park”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by China Electronics Beihai
Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd ( A E T1k)&
EXE#ERAR AR ("CEC Beihai”), a subsidiary
of the Group.

BEENWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

Hainan RSC

Hainan RSC is situated in Hainan, with a planned total
site area of 3,000 Mu, of which approximately 1,800
Mu of land has already been acquired, and application
to the government for the purchase of the remaining
approximately 1,200 Mu is in progress. The park targets
at enterprises engaging in software research, software
outsourcing and information technology training, as well as
call centres and internet media. The overall planning of the
park includes four functional zones: namely start-up zone,
large-scale enterprises zone, livelihood-supporting zone and
enterprise self-established zone. The start-up zone consists
of Plot A and Plot B with a total site area of approximately
350 Mu, which now consists of 26 office buildings in Plot
A, 29 office buildings in Plot B, an incubation building, and
Laocheng Economic Development Zone Administration
Affairs Service Centre, etc. The large-scale enterprises zone
is located at Plot C, which is in the middle of Hainan RSC.
It is customised specifically for enterprises with over 500
employees, occupying a site area of approximately 490 Mu
and will be constructed along the riverside with natural
landscape of water flowing beneath a small bridge. The
livelihood-supporting zone consists of Plot D, Plot E and
Plot G, which will include five-star hotels, Meilun Tertiary
Time Tropical Style Commercial Street (3 #3 5 = B5 [
HERIEMEEA), and youth entrepreneurship blocks
zone, etc. It mainly offers high-quality leisure, shopping,
accommodation, conference, food and beverages, and
recreational services for the park. The enterprise self-
established zone will be a self-built “park within park”, and
catering for a conglomerate’s need. With the land provided
by Hainan RSC, subject to complying with the overall
planning requirement of Hainan RSC, enterprises can
construct their own parks according to their own needs.

LR TR

B AERSGRERMN G £R 8 ®EA3,000
o B ES 491,800 ¢ FIER4Y1,20088 £Hb1E
FRBNAEREE - BR 2 BECERRSTH
T - BMEINAI RS B R EE T A REFEF LK
MEEB s X - REEEBRISELLRE R
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o2 R B IEANBIL LR - BB 4350 ' IR B
FEAM 261K B 712 B H29IR B F 18 b K
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PETEH (4908 ;Z @ A5 BKME  NE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Mingyue Ju residential development project is
located at Plot B in the start-up zone with a total
gross floor area of approximately 34,000 square
metres. The construction of Mingyue Ju was
completed in December 2014. Mingyue Ju is held
for sale and as at 31 December 2015, approximately
18,300 square metres have been sold in total, of
which approximately 4,300 square metres were sold
during the year ended 31 December 2015. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately
17,400 square metres of the completed Integrated
Service Residential project in Plot B were sold.

The construction of Meilun Tertiary Time Tropical
Style Commercial Street in Plot E has commenced
in the first half of 2013. It occupies a site area
of approximately 90 Mu. Its overall construction
planning and design covers 16 blocks of building
with a total gross floor area of 72,000 square
metres. The gross floor area of these buildings
ranges from 300 to 6,000 square metres. The
construction of the commercial street was
substantially completed as at 31 December 2014. In
early 2015, owing to market demand, fine-tuning
works were carried out to add supermarket element
in the commercial street complex. The construction
of the commercial street complex was completed
at the end of 2015. The commercial street is held
for rental purposes and leasing went well as at 31
December 2015.

The large-scale enterprises zone in Plot C consists
of five phases, and construction has commenced
in the first half of 2014. Phase 1 consists of 13
office buildings with a total gross floor area of
43,000 square metres. The gross floor area of these
buildings ranges from 1,600 to 10,000 square
metres. Construction of the 13 office buildings of
Phase 1 was completed in December 2015. Phase 1
is held for sale and rental purposes.

BEENWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

12

Phase 2 is divided into southern and northern
areas and consists of 41 office buildings with a
total gross floor area of 197,000 square metres.
The construction has commenced in the first half
of 2015. The gross floor area of these buildings
ranges from 1,700 to 17,000 square metres. As at
31 December 2015, the main structure of 35 office
buildings were topped off and the construction of
the other 6 office buildings has commenced. The
construction of the 41 office buildings of Phase 2
is scheduled for completion in the second half of
2016. Upon completion, they are intended to be
held either for sale or rental purposes.

Youth entrepreneurship blocks zone in Plot G is
planned to consist of three phases. Phase 1 consists
of 3 residential buildings with a total gross floor
area of 96,000 square metres. The construction of
Phase 1 has commenced in the first half of 2014
and was completed in the second half of 2015. As
at 31 December 2015, approximately 20,200 square
metres were sold.

With respect of business development, Hainan
RSC has carried out an in-depth co-operation with
Shenzhen Tencent Computer Systems Company
Limited CRYITREAAEREZRER LA,
and has inaugurated the internet industrial cluster
massive plan in Hainan, with an aim to develop
Hainan RSC as an internet industrial cluster zone
as well as an international internet economic
demonstration zone in Hainan. As at 31 December
2015, there were approximately 810 enterprises
operating in Hainan RSC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Xi‘an Industrial Park

Xi‘an Industrial Park is situated in Xi‘an and occupies
a site area of 470 Mu, of which 202 Mu of land has
already been acquired, and application for the purchase
of the rest from the government is in progress. The park
targets at enterprises engaging in producer and consumer
information services industries such as cloud computing
services, integrated circuits design, software research and
development, information services, information security
and electronic commerce. The overall planning of the
industrial park is substantially completed.

Phase 1 consists of 5 office buildings. The gross floor area
of No. 1 to No. 4 office building ranges from 2,000 to
4,000 square metres, and the gross floor area of No. 5
office building is 17,000 square metres. The construction
of Phase 1 was substantially completed as at 31 December
2015. No. 1 to No. 4 building of Phase 1 are intended to
be held for sale. No. 1 and No. 2 building were pre-sold
to CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd, and No. 3 and
No. 4 building are currently at the pre-marketing stage.
No. 5 building of Phase 1 is intended to be held for rental
purposes and is currently at the pre-leasing stage.

Owing to market demand and favorable policies introduced
during the construction, modification has been made to the
development of Phase 2. Phase 2's design has been revised
to consist of 8 buildings and fire protection system and
standby power supply system for both Phase 1 and Phase
2. No. 1 and No. 3 to No. 7 building are single block office
building with gross floor area ranges from 2,000 to 6,000
square metres, and the gross floor area of No. 8 office
building is 50,000 square metres. No. 9 building is a steel-
structured two-storey training centre with a gross floor area
of 7,000 square metres. The construction of No. 9 building
of Phase 2 has commenced in the first half of 2014 and
was delivered for use in 2015. Construction of No. 1 and
No. 3 to No. 8 building of Phase 2 has commenced in the
second half of 2014 and is scheduled for completion in
2017. No. 1 and No. 3 to No. 7 building of Phase 2 are
intended to be held for sale and are currently at the pre-
marketing stage. No. 9 building of Phase 2 is held for
rental purposes and was leased out for a term of 10 years.
No. 8 building of Phase 2 is intended to be held for rental
purposes.

BEENWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

Beihai Industrial Park

Beihai Industrial Park is situated in Beihai, Guangxi. The
park targets at manufacturers of computers and computer
storage, as well as enterprises engaging in software
research and services, and the production of key parts of
LCD monitors and A/D power.

CEC Beihai has been actively negotiating with the People’s
Government of Beihai on the joint development and
construction of Beibu Gulf Eco-Wisdom Electronics City.
In order to cater for the development needs of emerging
high-tech industries such as electronic commerce,
software development and information services, smart
manufacturing and innovative design, a preliminary
intention had been formed for the construction of China
Electronics Beibu Gulf Information Harbour, which will
form an integral part of Beibu Gulf Eco-Wisdom Electronics
City. As at 31 December 2015, the preliminary preparation
works such as site selection of the project had been
completed. Acquisition of a piece of land with site area of
approximately 160 Mu for the development of first phase
of the project is expected to be completed by first half of
2016.

Due to the development of China Electronics Beibu Gulf
Information Harbour, the second phase construction to
upgrade the facilities of Beihai Industrial Park has been
temporary put on hold.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, profit attributable
to the electronic information technology industrial parks
operating segment amounted to HK$123.0 million,
representing a significant improvement when comparing
with the loss of HK$6.1 million in the corresponding
period of last year. The profit recorded for the year
was primarily due to (i) fair value gains on investment
properties increased by 300.8% to HK$95.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015; and (ii) the Group's
share of profit from an associate company, Hainan Resort
Software Community Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd increased by 135.0% to HK$44.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, bank and
other borrowings, and issuance of corporate bonds. At 31
December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$852.8 million, 98.8% of which were
denominated in Renminbi, 0.7% in United States dollars
and 0.5% in Hong Kong dollars (2014: HK$534.1 million,
98.8% of which was denominated in Renminbi, 0.8% in
United States dollars and 0.4% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total bank and
other borrowings of HK$901.6 million, all of which were
denominated in Renminbi (2014: HK$1,332.5 million, all
of which were denominated in Renminbi). Among these
borrowings, (i) all were secured by short-term deposits of
the Group (2014: HK$65.9 million were secured by non-
current assets of the Group, HK$1,266.5 million were
secured by short-term deposits of the Group, and HK$0.1
million were unsecured), and (ii) all were borrowed at
fixed interest rate (2014: HK$1,266.5 million and HK$66.0
million were borrowed at fixed and variable interest rates
respectively). At 31 December 2015, committed borrowing
facilities available to the Group but not drawn amounted to
HK$865.0 million.

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750 million (the “Bonds”). The issue price of the
Bonds is 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds and
will mature on 16 January 2017. The Bonds bear interest
at the rate of 4.70% per annum and are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. China Electronics
Corporation Limited (“CEC") assists the Company in
meeting its obligations under the Bonds by entering into
a keepwell deed and a deed of equity interest purchase
undertaking. Pursuant to the keepwell deed, CEC, as
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
undertakes to, inter alia, in the event that the Company is
unable to fulfil its payment obligations, provide sufficient
fund to the Group to enable the Group to meet its
payment obligations.

BEENWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

The Group's revenue are mainly denominated in Renminbi
and payments are denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. The Group will make use of hedging
contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign
exchange fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of
HK$4,015.4 million (2014: HK$4,317.0 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
the total assets of the Group, was 79.4% (2014: 83.6%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2015, certain assets of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$929.5 million (2014:
HK$1,464.7 million) were pledged as collateral for
borrowings obtained by its subsidiaries.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group had the following outstanding capital
commitments at 31 December 2015:

AEBPWATEUARBEEMNTAARE K
BILAEE c NEE G RE RN B R A AR
B H X IMNE K B o

R2015F12A31H  AEBRBEEFER
4,015.48 8B 70 (2014F 431708 BE L) °
BREEABEBELXE (UAEENBRAERINEE
EFE)E79.4% (20149F :83.6% ) °

EEHRR

R2015F12831H  AEBEREAERISHES
TC(2014F 1464 7TEEB TN ETEEEE
BHENBAREENIEKFR-

EXREERIBEE

R2015F12A31H  KEB R REIT 2 EARRIE
m:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015%12A318 2014412A31H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Contracted but not provided for: ERTAVE R
— Acquisition of 95.64% equity interest in — U BE LI SR
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit EREREMELR
Co., Ltd 95.64% & AN #E 75 788.0 -
— Subscription of 1,491,469,917 —RBE1,491,469,917 0%
new shares of Optics Valley Union Holding AR S TR
Company Limited AR A ARG 1,193.2 -
1,981.2 -

At 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2014: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at 31
December 2015 (2014: nil).

R2015F12A31H AEBERESEATCEENE
WEEWEEMEKRNE KRBT ZEANEE (2014
fF4E) o N2015F12A318  REE W EEME
KK BEEE (2014F 1 &) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 520
employees, the majority of whom were based in the PRC.
Employee benefit expenses for the year were HK$194.0
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonuses and other merit payments
are linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance.

BEENWR DN
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Corporate Governance Report
PEEARE

The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate
governance practices by emphasising its accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The
Company is dedicated to exercise corporate governance
through regular reviews of its adopted practices with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2015. The following summarises the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2015, the board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company consists of two executive
directors, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The roles of the
chairman of the Board are segregated from the managing
director. The chairman of the Board is responsible for
leading and overseeing the functioning of the Board and
the strategic development of the Group. The managing
director is delegated with the authority and responsible for
managing the Group’s business, and the implementation
of the Group's strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2015, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were held separately by Mr. Rui
Xiaowu and Mr. Xie Qinghua, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and
accountability. There are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among the directors (including
the chairman of the Board and the managing director).
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MR2015F12A31H AR A EEE ([EFg])
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18  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2015



All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of the
directors are determined with reference to their duties,
responsibilities, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation of
business objectives are delegated to the managing director.
The management is delegated with proper authority to
carry out daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to directors, and
reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors to
fill any vacancy on the Board. The Board will consider
whether the candidate’s skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives (including but is not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience to achieve the diversity of members of the
Board) meet the requirements of the Company when
considering a nomination. In 2015, a Board meeting was
held to consider the appointment of Mr. Dong Haoran as a
non-executive director of the Company. When considering
Mr. Dong’s nomination and appointment, the Board has
applied the above mentioned criteria and procedures.

Corporate Governance Report
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DEBRGE

All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board meets
regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between scheduled
meetings, the senior management of the Group provides
information to directors on a regular basis regarding
the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expense. With respect
to regular meetings of the Board, the directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in
advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than 3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and
practicable in the circumstances. If a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting. Independent
non-executive directors who, and whose close associates,
have no material interest in the transaction should be
present at that Board meeting. All minutes of Board and
Board committee meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company to record in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Board committee, including any concerns raised or
dissenting views expressed by any director. These minutes
are available for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director. The attendance record
of the directors at the general meeting(s), Board and Board
committee meetings held in 2015 are set out on page 29
of the annual report. Besides providing sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group, all directors have
disclosed to the Company the number and nature of the
offices held in other public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments, and updated the
Company on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the directors from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.
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PEERRE

The directors acknowledge the need to continue to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for
making contributions to the Company. The participation
by individual directors in the continuous professional
development programme with appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in 2015 is recorded in the table below.

SEEXRRTE 22 EEE-

EXEMRATERERRLFN AT MBS
ARARRFHELER - TREFI S EEN2015F
RENEELTRARESZAG BERBEZ

Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
BE SR
EERE BisE
BEHER WHE EH
Non-executive directors FHITES
Rui Xiaowu** BB * v v
Dong Haoran EER v/ v
Executive directors HITES
Liu Hongzhou 21 AT M v v
Xie Qinghua** AR EE v/ v
Liu Jinping* BE T~ v/
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Chan Kay Cheung PRAE & v/ v
Qiu Hongsheng B A v v
Chow Chan Lum B IEAR 4 4

* Resigned in February 2015

*x Resigned in January 2016

The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 31 to

35 of the annual report.

* R2015%2 4§ (T

o R2016%F 1.4 T

EEMEHNFRFEINAES

FEETEEZRERAR 2015FFH% | 21



Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2015, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum, and an
executive director Mr. Xie Qinghua. Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
is the chairman of the remuneration and nomination
committee. The terms of reference of the remuneration and
nomination committee, which described its authority and
duties, is available on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the website of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy
and the remuneration of the directors and the senior
management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors, responsible for identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to appointment or re-appointment of
directors, succession planning for directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of directors, the remuneration
and nomination committee will also give adequate
consideration, including but not limited to, the followings:

i) members of the Board have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group's business;

i) the Board includes a balanced composition of
directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement;

iii) having taking into account of the Group’s own
business model and specific needs, through
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience to achieve
the diversity of members of the Board; and

iv) the appointment of new directors follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held three meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are set out
on page 29 of the annual report. The work performed by
the remuneration and nomination committee during the
year included reviewing the remuneration policy and the
remuneration of the directors and the senior management,
determining the remuneration of the executive directors,
reviewing the policy for the nomination of directors,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.
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SREARE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$nil up
to HK$1,000,000 and from HK$1,000,001 up to
HK$1,500,000 were three and one respectively. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out on pages 153 to 154 of the
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung,
Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr. Chan
Kay Cheung is the chairman of the audit committee. The
members have extensive experience in financial matters.
The terms of reference of the audit committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
the website of the Company.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and examines
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group and ensuring the external auditor
are independent and the effectiveness of the audit process.
The audit committee examines all matters relating to the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group,
auditing functions, internal controls, risk management and
financial reporting. External auditor and the directors are
invited to attend the committee meetings as and when
necessary. The audit committee also serves as a channel
of communication between the Board and the external
auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out on page 29 of the annual report.
The work performed by the audit committee during the
year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014, the unaudited consolidated interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2015 and the effectiveness of the internal control practices
of the Group. The audit committee has also reviewed
the audit plan and approach of the external auditor and
monitored the progress and results of the audit regularly.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees payable
to the Company’s external auditor in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out below:
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20154

HK$'000

FET

Audit services EIZIRTE 4,055
Non-audit services (included tax matters, FEZRE (RREHKEE FHE

review and other reporting services) H M R AR ) 3,067

7,122

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 56 to 58 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has (a) reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and compliance and risk management functions, (b)
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and (c) held discussion with the Group's external auditor, to
ensure that a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with the
agreed procedures and standards.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the Board
or the company secretary of the Company to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such special general meeting shall be held within two
months from the date of deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
these shareholders. The written requisition will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the written requisition has been verified as not
in order, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any special general meeting so convened shall
be held within three months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the registered shareholders concerned in
accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all the registered shareholders must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention
of the company secretary of the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution; and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition; and where
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the
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statutory and regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the written requisition has
been verified as not in order, the shareholders concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting wishes to propose a person other than a director
of the Company for election as a director at the general
meeting must validly serve (1) his/her written notice of
intention to propose a candidate for election as a director
at the general meeting; (2) a written notice signed by the
nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to
be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent
to the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the
Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

BANBHAAELRREX 2RALE -2
++iﬁgij‘?iﬁ?f%TﬁéTﬂ“ B R E
HMEHER MEBZ22RABRBTEMAABRRKE
Zu EW

BREBARSREECZRF

BRIERQABRARZE4MA] Aié*%ﬁr‘ﬁ&%i:A
THe T REZELREMIREGE —BLIEAR
EEATITRABRERE L2ERES EJJE%&%
WEAERZERMBRAZRREASBEELEH
RETMERZRREAGRITABREDLXRA
MEEERREAGLRAARZEEEZEM
ﬁ%ﬂ‘(D?ﬁ%%/\E%ﬁ%Z%@@%ﬂ"E’éﬁﬂ,ﬁﬁﬁ
BQ)IRIE ETARBEI351Q)EEEE T
Engﬁk%}\mﬁﬂ RagRa AREZEEBEA
BREREBEZEAREBEELSHRRIAAFRE
BEEE %iﬁlgﬁ iﬁﬂt%%c/%/%{¥/%/gf_26ﬁﬁ$
HRE3MEMBE, I A RFREB RO BF
BN BEEEMRMYER AT It AB B ET
SRRBEBRISIFHA FIAR 221 -

BRROESSEHEAZREF

BERAIBEREAARNAR AR MEANEELAHE
EHEREFE ARRIARWE B GEHBET
T

BEREFBEE26T

B KN E34123403F

{5 :(852) 2598 9018

B I : investor@cecholdings.com.hk

BRIFAIERARRIZBERAE LAEFEHFELE
e

28  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2015



ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’s attendance at general meetings,
Board and Board committee meetings held in 2015 are set
out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

BB HETE

TREISEEN20I5FAHERRIAEG EF
EhREFREGERIAR:

Meetings attended/held
HERE, 22 RE
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee FMK General
Note Board** X RA meetings
Hrzz Exgr £Z88 ZE® BRERE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Rui Xiaowu WEEE 77 22*
Dong Haoran BEN 7 6/6 22
Executive directors BTEE
Liu Hongzhou B4 M 5/6 22
Xie Qinghua HEE 6/6 33 20
Liu Jinping BT 3 01 0/0
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Chan Kay Cheung Bie 1 210 33 0
Qiu Hongsheng e 77 212 3/3* 212
Chow Chan Lum FIEM 2 3/3 17 0/0 11
* Chairman * *E

*k

Notes:

Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors and
management present.

Appointed in February 2015

Appointed in June 2015

Resigned in February 2015

*% AP — R EFC DB EHEFS LT EEREHTT
EFNEEEESMELT SR THHTESE
(BB THHNTESE) -

Hiat

1. R2015F2 B LT

2. R2015F6 B EZ T

3. 201542 A BHE
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LISTING RULES COMPLIANCE

Following the resignation of Mr. Yin Yongli on 24 May
2014, the number of (i) independent non-executive
director of the Company, (ii) independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise
(the “Appropriate Expertise”), (iii) the audit committee
member and (iv) the audit committee member who is
an independent non-executive director with Appropriate
Expertise fell below the minimum number required under
the Listing Rules.

On 20 August 2014, the Board resolved to propose that
Mr. Chow Chan Lum be appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company, a member of
the remuneration and nomination committee of the
Board, and a member of the audit committee of the
Board. The appointment of Mr. Chow was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2015. Following the appointment
of Mr. Chow, the Company complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Haoran, aged 51, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Dong graduated from Tsinghua University with
a Bachelor’s degree in Semiconductor Devices and Physics,
and is a professor level senior engineer. Mr. Dong is a
director and the general manager of Huada Semiconductor
Co., Ltd (“Huada Semiconductor”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, an executive director of China
Integrated Circuit Design Corp., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, the chairman of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the
chairman of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd
and an executive director of CEC Huada Electronic Design
Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Dong joined Huada Electronics in
1988 and possesses extensive knowledge and experience
in the integrated circuit design industry. Mr. Dong was
appointed director of the Company in February 2015.

Mr. Jiang Juncheng, aged 40. Mr. Jiang graduated from
the Central University of Finance and Economics and holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and received a Master’s
degree in Professional Accounting, and also obtained
an Executive Master’'s degree of Business Administration
from School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua
University. Mr. Jiang is a senior accountant, a Certified
Public Accountant in the PRC and a Certified Public
Valuer in the PRC. Mr. Jiang is the chief accountant of
Huada Semiconductor, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and the chairman of the supervisory committee
of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Jiang joined Huada
Electronics in 2002 and was the deputy general manager
and financial controller of Huada Electronics. Mr. Jiang
possess a wealth of experience in finance and corporate
management. Mr. Jiang was appointed director of the
Company in January 2016.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, aged 50, is the Vice Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhejiang University
and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Semiconductor Physics
and Devices. Mr. Ma is the deputy general manager of
Huada Semiconductor, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, a director of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(@ company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange), a
director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), a director of CEC Huahong
International Co., Ltd and a director of Chengdu Sino
Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma, having
spent much of his career in China Electronics Corporation
Limited (“CEC"), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, was a divisional director of the Project Division
of the Corporate Management Department of CEC, a
divisional director of the Integrated Circuits and Devices
Division of the Industry Development Department of CEC,
and a deputy director of the Integrated Circuits Business
Department of CEC and a deputy director of the Science
and Technology Planning Department of CEC. Mr. Ma was
appointed director of the Company in January 2016.

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 53, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Business and Administration,
and is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much of
his career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director of the
Asset Management Department of CEC, an executive
director and the deputy general manager of Winfair
Development Limited, a divisional director of the Treasury
Division of the Investment Banking Department of CEC, the
deputy general manager of China Electronics Technology
Development Corporation, the deputy general manager of
the Asset Management Department of CEC, the deputy
general manager of the Company, a director of the General
Office of CEC, a director of Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and
the managing director of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in
October 2013.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 69. Mr. Chan is a senior
advisor of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman
of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman
of Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan
was an executive director and the deputy chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The
Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a member of the Process Review Committee
for the oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a
member of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals
Tribunal, a member of the Committee of Overseers of Lee
Woo Sing College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a member of The China Unionpay International Advisory
Group and an international senior economic consultant of
The People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan is
also an independent non-executive director of Chu Kong
Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited, Dah Chong
Hong Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food Investment
Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development Limited (all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Chan was appointed director of the Company in May
1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 51. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree in
Management Science and Engineering; and is a Certified
Public Valuer in the PRC, an International Certified Senior
Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified Dealmaker in the PRC,
the PRC Small, Medium-sized Enterprises Management
Consultancy Services Specialist and a senior economist. Mr.
Qiu is an executive director and the general manager of
China Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management
Co., Ltd. Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute of the
Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China as an economic
analyst for a number of years. Mr. Qiu joined China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd,
a company directly managed by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, in 1994 and focuses on management consulting
and corporation restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu
possesses a wealth of professional knowledge and practical
experiences on corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions,
strategic integration, meticulous management, etc. Mr.
Qiu is also an independent director of Lingyun Industrial
Corporation Limited, Beijing Tiantan Biological Products
Co., Ltd, China National Software & Service Co., Ltd, AVIC
Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd and GRINM Advanced Materials
Co., Ltd (all being companies listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed director of the Company
in November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBEAEHE

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 65. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree in 1974, received a
Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy from the University
of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United Kingdom in 1975 and
was awarded a Postgraduate Diploma in China Law by
the University of Macau in 1987. Mr. Chow has been
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland since 1979 and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is
the precedent partner of Wong Brothers & Co, Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Foreign Experts
Consultative Committee on China Independent Auditing
Standards of the PRC Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chow
served on a number of committees of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, including as the
deputy chairman of the Auditing & Assurance Standards
Committee, and a member of the Investigation Panel
and the Professional Standards Monitoring Committee,
and as president of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow serves as an honorary advisor and committee
member of various social bodies, and has been a member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Guangdong Province, the PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr.
Chow is also an independent non-executive director of
Maoye International Holdings Limited, and has been an
independent non-executive director of China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited from 2002 to 2012 and
Pak Tak International Limited from 2002 to 2014 (all being
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC in 2013. Mr. Chow was appointed
director of the Company in June 2015.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Haihua, aged 52, is the deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. He graduated from Chengdu
Electrical Engineering Institute and hold a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering, and obtained a Master's degree
of Business Administration from School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University. Mr. He is a senior
engineer and a Certified Safety Engineer in the PRC. Mr.
He is the general manager of China Electronics Technology
Development Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a director of CEC Wenzhou Industrial
Park Development Co., Ltd. Mr. He possesses a wealth
of experience in developing industrial parks. Mr. He was
appointed deputy general manager of the Company in
March 2015.

Ms. Wang Qiuju, aged 49, is the financial controller of
the Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the School of
Economics of Xiamen University and holds a Postgraduate
degree in Finance and is a senior accountant. Ms. Wang is
a director of Zhuhai Southern Software Park Development
Co., Ltd and a director of Shenzhen Xingye Co., Ltd. Ms.
Wang was previously head of the Finance Department
of Shenzhen SED Electronics Corp., head of the Finance
Department, financial controller and chief accountant
of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd, general
manager of the Finance Department of China Electronics
International Information Service Co., Ltd and a member of
the supervisory committee of Shenzhen SED Industry Co.,
Ltd (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
Ms. Wang joined the Company in March 2015.

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 54, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuit chips, and the development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 59 of the annual
report.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has proposed
to declare a dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 of HK3.0 cents per share (2014: HK2.6
cents), amounting to a total dividend of HK$60,896,000.
The dividend is subject to approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2015, the issued share capital of the
Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. Details of movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 26 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 63 of the annual
report and Note 36 to the financial statements, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$280,381,000 (2014: HK$404,799,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
155 to 156 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year and the
outlook of its businesses is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 7 to 17 and on pages 4 to 6 of the
annual report, respectively. Such discussions constitute an
integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including the
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers.
The Board believes that the employees are one of the
Group’s most important assets. The Company will strive to
ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line
with industry practices and prevailing market conditions,
and remuneration of employees will be determined based
on their performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.
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In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Group’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of
the Group's businesses. The Group has an extensive sales
network across the PRC and to manage such network
requires a close working relationship with our customers
directly and through distributors, agents and other
business partners. The Group will continue to strengthen
its customer service to provide superior quality service to
the users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times
and highest customer satisfaction levels in the industry. The
Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group's revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance of
the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of the
information technology sector in the PRC, particularly the
electronic information technology sector. Although the
information technology sector is demonstrating a growing
trend in the past which is in part supported by favourable
government policies, any negative trend in the information
technology sector or other restrictive policies may materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition and
results of operation of Group.

The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive with
relatively short product cycles, and is subject to policies
of the government. The Group’s results of operation
substantially depend on the successful execution of its
business strategy and development plan to maintain its
leading position in the design of integrated circuit chips
sector in the PRC. The Group may face challenges in
implementing its strategies, and its ability to achieve its
goals may be adversely affected by various factors, some
of which are beyond its control. If the Group is not able
to execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation may
be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the industrial leaders in the design of integrated
circuit chips sector in the PRC, the Company is committed
to operating its various business segments in an
environmentally-friendly manner. Although most of the
Group's businesses are not subject to any environmental
protection rules and restrictions, the Board believes that
operating the Group’s businesses in an environmentally-
friendly manner is crucial to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and requirements, the Group offers
periodical trainings to its key personnel. As a result of the
Group’s commitment to environmental protection and
through the implementation of advanced technologies,
the Group has achieved safe and environmentally-friendly
operation during the year ended 31 December 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of a business and attaches
considerable importance to it. Furthermore, as the shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
is also subject to the rules and requirements under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). To the
best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Dong Haoran (Chairman)
(appointed as director on 12 February 2015 and
as Chairman on 19 January 2016)
Jiang Juncheng
(appointed on 19 January 2016)
Rui Xiaowu
(resigned on 19 January 2016)

Executive Directors
Ma Yuchuan (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 19 January 2016)
Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)
Liu Jinping
(resigned on 12 February 2015)
Xie Qinghua
(resigned on 19 January 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung
Qiu Hongsheng
Chow Chan Lum
(appointed on 30 June 2015)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Liu Hongzhou
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each
of the directors of the Company containing terms relating
to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, and observation of the bye-laws of the
Company. The directors of the Company will be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.
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None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2015, Mr. Dong Haoran, a non-executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board,
has personal interest (long position) in 4,672,420 shares
of the Company (representing 0.23% of the issued share
capital of the Company). Save as disclosed herein, none of
the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the annual report, at no time during
the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered
into any contract of significance with any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract
of significance been entered into for the services provided
by any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 June 2015, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd
("Huada Electronics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd (“Huada Semiconductor”)
(the “Huada Semiconductor Agreement”), pursuant to
which Huada Electronics agreed to acquire 73.43% equity
interest in Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd
("Huahong”) for a consideration of RMB550.7 million
(the “Huada Semiconductor Acquisition”). On 26 June
and 27 August 2015, Huada Electronics also entered into
equity transfer agreements with the individual shareholders
of Huahong and Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd
to acquire an aggregate of 22.21% equity interest in
Huahong at an aggregate consideration of RMB166.6
million. The aggregate consideration payable by Huada
Electronics for the acquisition of 95.64% equity interest in
Huahong was RMB717.3 million.

Huada Semiconductor is a subsidiary of CEC and CEC
is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, Huada Semiconductor is a connected person
of the Company. The Huada Semiconductor Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.
Details of the Huada Semiconductor Acquisition are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 27 October
2015. The Huada Semiconductor Agreement and the
transaction contemplated thereunder has been approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 19 November 2015. The
acquisition of 95.64% equity interest in Huahong was
completed in February 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS EEBHERS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 34 to BE EMARANESR S S mKRME34FT R R
the consolidated financial statements also fall under the WA TR MBRIFEBERS -

definition of “continuing connected transactions” within

the meaning of the Listing Rules.

Details of certain of these transactions which are subject BETZER

R ST LR BIH) R R N R R B

Vs
to the reporting and annual review requirements under the M AEFBHRRET

Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

Transaction

amount
in 2015
20155
RETHE
Note HK$'000
Type of transaction X5 %5l ligza FHET
Sale of products to the CEC Group AAREEFEBKEARIHE ii(a) 185,401
Em
Purchase of raw materials and modules from the MPEEFEBEREATRE ii(b) 293,476
CEC Group, provision of products processing, EMEREE RPEHETE
testing and assembling services by the BB ARREERMT
CEC Group o R E N B8 AR 7
Interest received from the CEC Group M EEFEBRE QR UE 5,576
ME
Property management fee paid to the CEC Group MAHEFEE i, v, vii 8,823
RERRIZNMEERE
Interest paid to the CEC Group mMPRETEE 5,357
4= WNCIEE NP FSN
Catering service fee paid to the CEC Group MAEEFEE Vil 878
KERARIZNERRGE
Notes: Kt -
(i) China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”, together with (i) FEETFEEEEESEEERAR([FEETFE
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group"), is a connected person of B ERENBAR [PREFEEKER
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of A1) BARF ZERKRER  RE EmR A AR

the Company under the Listing Rules.
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(ii)

(iii)

44

On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the business
services agreement dated 19 July 2010 (the “2010-2013
Business Services Agreement”) and to facilitate the Group's
production and operation upon the expiration of the 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement on 30 June 2013, the
Company entered into the 2013-2016 Business Services
Agreement with CEC to reflect the terms of the proposed
continuing connected transactions and the caps of the
transactions thereunder for the period commencing from
1 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the 2013-2016
Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and modules
from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC Group.

The 2013-2016 Business Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 20 June
2013, details of which are set out in the circular dated 28 May
2013.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

(b) Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC
Group are for the Group's research and development
of integrated circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The
CEC Group also provides products processing, testing
and assembling services to the Group.

On 1 February 2013, China Electronics Beihai Industrial Park
Development Co., Ltd (FEIEFILEFEXBER AR A
A1) ("CEC Beihai”) and CEC Rida Property Management Co.,
Ltd (dt R EIREWEBR A F) ("CEC Rida”) entered
into a property management agreement (the “Property
Management Agreement”) to govern the continuous
provision of property management services by CEC Rida
to CEC Beihai. The term of the Property Management
Agreement commenced on 1 February 2013 and will expire
on 31 December 2016. As CEC Rida is a subsidiary of CEC,
CEC Rida is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the
Property Management Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the
Property Management Agreement and the related caps are set
out in the announcement dated 7 July 2013.

(ii)

(iii)
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(vii)

On 5 July 2013, China Electronics Technology Development
Co., Ltd ("CEC Technology”) and CEC entered into a
guarantee arrangements agreement (the “Guarantee
Arrangements Agreement”) to govern the continuous
provision of guarantees by CEC in respect of certain
financial assistance for CEC Technology and its subsidiaries
("CEC Technology Group”). The term of the Guarantee
Arrangements Agreement commenced on 5 July 2013 and
will expire on 30 June 2016. The transactions contemplated
under the Guarantee Arrangements Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details of
the Guarantee Arrangements Agreement and the related caps
are set out in the announcement dated 7 July 2013.

On 24 November 2014, the Company and CEC Rida entered
into a master property management agreement (the “Master
Property Management Agreement”) pursuant to which CEC
Rida and its subsidiaries (“CEC Rida Group”) shall from time to
time provide property management services to the Group for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2015 and
ending on 31 December 2017. The transactions contemplated
under the Master Property Management Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
Details of the Master Property Management Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 24
November 2014.

On 24 November 2014, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “Master Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group shall from time to time lease
properties located within the PRC and owned by the Group
to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2015 and ending on 31 December 2017. The
transactions contemplated under the Master Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
Details of the Master Lease Agreement and the related caps
are set out in the announcement dated 24 November 2014.

The Company has subsequently revised the annual cap
amounts payable by the Group to the CEC Rida Group in
respect of the property management services under the
Master Property Management Agreement, and the annual
cap amounts of rental receivable by the Group from the CEC
Group under the Master Lease Agreement. Details of the
revised caps are set out in the announcement dated 18 May
2015.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viiij  On 18 May 2015, Huada Electronics and CEC Rida entered
into a catering services agreement (the “Catering Services
Agreement”) pursuant to which Huada Electronics will
engage CEC Rida to provide catering services for its staff
for a term commencing from 1 July 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017. The transactions contemplated under the
Catering Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the Catering
Services Agreement and the related caps are set out in the
announcement dated 18 May 2015.

(ix) On 18 May 2015, Huada Electronics and CEC Rida entered
into a transportation services agreement (the “Transportation
Services Agreement”) pursuant to which Huada Electronics
will engage CEC Rida to provide transportation services for
its staff for a term commencing from 1 July 2015 and ending
on 31 December 2017. The transactions contemplated under
the Transportation Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the
Transportation Services Agreement and the related caps are
set out in the announcement dated 18 May 2015.

On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the comprehensive financial services agreement dated 19
July 2010 (the “Financial Services Agreement”), and to
facilitate the Group’s operation upon the expiration of
the Financial Services Agreement on 30 June 2013, the
Company entered into the 2013-2016 Financial Services
Agreement with China Electronics Financial Co., Ltd (“CEC
Finance”), a subsidiary of CEC to reflect the terms of the
proposed continuing connected transactions and the caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the
2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement, the financial
services provided by CEC Finance to the Group includes
deposit services, financial assistance and fee-based and
commission-based financial services.
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The 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 20 June 2013, details of which are set out
in the circular dated 28 May 2013.

Pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement,
the maximum daily balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB280 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance
on any given day during the year ended 31 December
2015 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall not
exceed RMB280 million on any given day and no financial
assistance had ever been granted to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2015. For the provision of
fee-based and commission-based financial services, the
cap for fees and commissions payable for the fee-based
and commission-based financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is RMB10 million and no fee-based and commission-
based financial service had ever been provided to the
Group by CEC Finance during the year ended 31 December
2015.

On 5 July 2013, CEC Technology entered into a financial
services agreement (the “CEC Technology Financial Services
Agreement”) with CEC Finance to reflect the terms of the
proposed continuing connected transactions and the caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 5 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the CEC
Technology Financial Services Agreement, the financial
services provided by CEC Finance to the CEC Technology
Group includes deposit services, financial assistance and
fee-based and commission-based financial services.
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The CEC Technology Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 11 October 2013, details of which are set
out in the circular dated 28 August 2013.

Pursuant to the CEC Technology Financial Services
Agreement, the maximum daily balance of deposits
(together with the interests accrued thereon) maintained
by the CEC Technology Group with CEC Finance shall
not exceed RMB200 million and the CEC Technology
Group’s actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance
on any given day during the year ended 31 December
2015 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the CEC Technology
Group shall not exceed RMB200 million on any given
day and the CEC Technology Group's actual balance of
financial assistance provided by CEC Finance on any given
day during the year ended 31 December 2015 had not
exceeded such amount. For the provision of fee-based and
commission-based financial services, the cap for fees and
commissions payable for the fee-based and commission-
based financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
CEC Technology Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is RMB750,000. The fees and commissions paid for
the fee-based and commission-based financial service by
the CEC Technology Group to CEC Finance for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$268,000.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions. The above continuing connected transactions
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
above continuing connected transactions were carried out
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Based on the results of the work performed on the above
continuing connected transactions, the auditor of the
Company has confirmed in its letter to the Board that:

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by
the Board;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded their
respective maximum aggregate annual value as
disclosed in the previous announcements.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group:

EERNBRFRB RS

REEAMBEARER  TIHARBEZHR
AEEERNEBERNEEBREF LA EBK

B EBER

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EERNEHER
EEpA BREE BRCITEXRH ZEDME
Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture of Director
EEAR ERLEE (M) integrated circuits 5=
SEXRERRT REE
China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings Director
Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) BEER o=
MEEARENERRAEER
BRAR (Hat2)
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Design of integrated circuits Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd (Note 2) EREEKEE BER
FBENEXNEEAEREEAA
(B1at2)
Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (Note 2) Design and manufacture of Chairman
EBERERNDBERAR (#it2) integrated circuits BER
S ERRRET MBS
Rui Xiaowu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman
EBEE hEETFEE (M) RE R R
Ma Yuchuan Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (Note 2) Design and manufacture of Director
BEI FBEERMDBRAR (#iF2) integrated circuits o=
EXNBERRTREE
CEC Huahong International Design and manufacture of Director
Co., Ltd (Note 2) integrated circuits 5=
hEEMEBRBRAR (Hat2) SEXRERRR LB
Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Design and manufacture of Director
Technology Co., Ltd (Note 2) integrated circuits o

PREBEE D F R
BRAR (Bat2)

SRRERRRET M BE
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Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EENEHRER
EEpR BEREE BERZTEXK ZRERME
Jiang Juncheng Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (Note 2) Design and manufacture of Chairman of
ZF:K FBBEERMDBRAR (#iF2) integrated circuits the supervisory committee
AR R R ERR
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
25 Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) BB R 48 438
PEEREKERRTEER
BRRT (Hat2)

Nationz Technologies Inc (Note 2) Design of integrated circuits Chairman
B RSt AR AR (Hat2) EXER RS BEER

Notes: Biat

CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. Huada Semiconductor is a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Both CEC and Huada
Semiconductor have subsidiaries or associates engaging
in integrated circuits related businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group. CEC has subsidiaries or associates
engaging in the development and management of electronic
information technology industrial parks related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The Board exercises independent judgment
and is always acting for the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and
at arm’s length from, the competing businesses mentioned

above.
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE

INTERESTS

At 31 December 2015, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that
the following persons (other than the directors or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company that

they had an interest of 5% or more in the issued share

capital of the Company:

Name of interested party

FEREEER

BREAHBER ZRR

PR2015F12H31H  BEBEFEHF KB EIEFIE336
BARARBIBBGFEZEZMATR THAL (AR
AEEAEARTHAEBRIN EMERRREE
BAEARDRBEBITRAS% A E 2 s

Number of
shares held or

China Electronics Corporation
(BVI) Holdings Company
Limited ("CEC (BVI)")

Huada Semiconductor (Note1)

CEC (Note 2)

China Electronics Corporation
(BVI) Holdings Company
Limited ([ CEC (BVI) )

EAFBE (M)

hEEFEE (HiF2)

attributable Percentage
BEREWN of shareholding
R A ERBESH
812,500,000 40.03%
1,206,180,000 59.42%
1,206,180,000 59.42%

Notes:

52

Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC
(BVI). Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed
to be interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company
held by CEC (BVI).

CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise established
under the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

Wit -
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All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

According to the terms and conditions of the 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750 million, CEC, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, is required to directly or indirectly own and hold
more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company.
Such bond will mature in January 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 64% of the Group’s sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for 17% of the Group's sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 79% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 28% of the Group's purchases for
the year.
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To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC Group is the
beneficial owner of one of the five largest customers and is
the beneficial owner of two of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
best knowledge of the Board owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement during the year ended 31 December 2015.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of
the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 37 to the financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of this report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group's businesses were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event of the Group after 31 December 2015
are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Board, at the
date of this report, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital are held by the public and fulfills the
requirement under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

NRBERE

RARERH AR AR B Z RRAEM RLE
ZEMAM AARERTRABBEELH25%
HARATRALNAE EHRAZEHK-

BEREES

EXEeE THNERZESCENARBEEE2015
FRAJNBALEFENKEERGFEMBRE -

BB

AR BRRE B EIRAER BB B
1 o B S A B AT B B 5 AT 0 B FE B SRR 4F
A& EERER EREEERTFAEERET -

AEEEWm
FE
EER

EF78 - 201653 H30H

PREFEEITFRERAR 2015FF8K 55



Independent Auditor’s Report
B B RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 59
to 154, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BYRBEEHE
BHEEFEEZRERLAZEKRE

(RESHESTMHA LR ARECELEZH
R 2\ 7])

RNAZEED (A TR (3 M)) B BN E N FE59
BEEFIM4EZ2HHETEREZERERAR ([E
RARENBRRZEAUBRE LR E
BRERBIENR2015F12A3MBZGAEERRER
HEFZALFEZRANRZR Ke2ENKE
R REAEREHREGERAERER UKEKX
CHBRRBMEREMMHEREER -

EERARAVBBRRAREZEE

BERAEZAABRBEBSIMAGEMNE
B BREERREFE (RAHED) HRERE
WHEEMRENGEAMBRE AHERSR
FEREVBREROBE N FHEARKEFRHE R
EHMERERRAPT BTN EE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

BRRRAKE

BB 2 E1E
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WIFERZBERBERMOER Bt 20 H
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ZEREN 2 FIH - SRR AR AR B B
REMBRRFAEAHERRL Z Ak - ¥ G
ZERBE ZBMEEREZATARUEGANE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B S

_E
pwc

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

malmsk
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
ok FEx FAET
(Restated)
(E31)
(Note 25)
(Kt7225)
Continuing operations BEKE XK
Revenue WA 5 1,264,001 1,351,723
Cost of sales fHE AN 7 (713,828) (773,275)
Gross profit EF 550,173 578,448
Other income and gains — net Ep g A KWz — 558 6 163,625 122,408
Selling and marketing costs HE R TISHEERA 7 (64,663) (98,135)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (308,754) (243,679)
Operating profit KRR 340,381 359,042
Finance income B WA 9 30,758 40,476
Finance costs A& R A 9 (178,058) (181,454)
Finance costs — net BhE KA —FEE 9 (147,300) (140,978)
Profit before taxation KRB A & R 193,081 218,064
Taxation 18 10 (30,011) (45,318)
Profit for the year from BEKSEZ¥KZ
continuing operations REERF 163,070 172,746
Discontinued operation ERIERE XK
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIERE2EK 2
discontinued operation REFEF, (E18) 25 133,688 (5,707)
Profit for the year REERFA 296,758 167,039
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERN (FE)
attributable to: BEBR:
Owners of the Company RAElE=FEE 280,134 170,108
Non-controlling interests R 16,624 (3,069)
296,758 167,039
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERN, (FE)
attributable to owners of BFERAQAER
the Company arises from: BEERER:
Continuing operations RERE X 163,070 172,746
Discontinued operation ERIERE 2 X 117,064 (2,638)
280,134 170,108
Dividend BRE 11 60,896 52,777
HK cents HK cents
Bl il
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREAXREF,(FHE) 12
Continuing operations HEEE 2T 8.03 9.70
Discontinued operation ERIEEE ZER 5.77 (0.15)
13.80 9.55
PEEFEEIERAEIRAR 2015FF% 59




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
(Note 25)
(Bat25)
Profit for the year REERF 296,758 167,039
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEBKE:
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified to AIBEE DI E R 3k
profit or loss: EEHIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINETEH
foreign operations bE =58 (70,932) (6,656)
Total comprehensive income for AFEETEHWSARE
the year 225,826 160,383
Total comprehensive income for AFEETHEHWSEARHE
the year attributable to: EER:
Owners of the Company RAGERFEE 209,202 163,452
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A = 16,624 (3,069)
225,826 160,383
Total comprehensive income for FAFEETEHWSREARHE
the year attributable to FERARAER
owners of the Company arises from: BEERBER:
Continuing operations FELE 2T 108,856 166,901
Discontinued operation ERIERE 7 ER 100,346 (3,449)
209,202 163,452
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015%12A31H 2014%F12A831H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE RS 13 399,459 414,630
Investment properties BEME 14 - 409,401
Land use rights held for self-use BRI RARE 15 13,219 15,973
Intangible assets EILEE 16 15,431 8,453
Investment in an associate R—REBEARIRE 18 = 55,508
Investment in a joint venture R—EEaE QR E 19 = 21,338
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E b fE W FRIE 22 68,175 507,054
Deferred tax assets REFRIEE = 10 24,963 60,173
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEEeMmEE 20 2,387 2,535
523,634 1,495,065
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 21 136,949 454,505
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE W FKIE 22 849,109 849,945
Taxation recoverable AR TR IA 7,046 19,522
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEEeMmEE 20 147,237 114,087
Short-term deposits and investments %2 877 A R I& & 23 1,846,675 3,259,010
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReEEBY 24 696,467 534,134
3,683,483 5,231,203
Assets of disposal group classified DERBIELEZ
as held for sale HEMER 2 EE 25 1,972,040 -
5,655,523 5,231,203
Total assets EEHTE 6,179,157 6,726,268
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12H318 2014412A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHERT FHEIT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Equity attributable to owners KRG EEEM
of the Company i
Share capital and premium IR 5 (B 26 825,454 825,454
Reserves & (765,840) (642,131)
Retained earnings R % 1,173,786 893,652
1,233,400 1,076,975
Non-controlling interests FEERER 41,479 24,855
Total equity EREE 1,274,879 1,101,830
Liabilities a8fE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Unsecured corporate bonds | D EE S 27 3,258,479 3,436,724
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 30 = 1,266,418
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEEE 10 5,686 7,094
3,264,165 4,710,236
Current liabilities RBAE
Deferred government grants EE BT B 28 54,015 137,742
Advances from customers BPEIEMNRIE 730 17,804
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M e IR 29 444,694 600,980
Bank and other borrowings WITRAMEE 30 - 66,044
Income tax payable JE A PS8 3R 18 21,919 91,632
521,358 914,202
Liabilities of disposal group classified B A#FEHE ~
as held for sale HEARzBE 25 1,118,755 -
1,640,113 914,202
Total liabilities BEHEE 4,904,278 5,624,438
Total equity and liabilities ERREEERHE 6,179,157 6,726,268
The financial statements on pages 59 to 154 were HREIEEFIM4E LB RERLEETER
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors 201653 A30 At R IR - Wil A ALK
on 30 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: w=E:
Dong Haoran E A& Liu Hongzhou 241 M
Director &% Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAARBRAEEE
Non-
controlling

Share Share Surplus  Translation Merger Other Retained interests Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total FER equity
B& BHEE BHER ERffE AbHRE AftfE  REER 4 [ $: i $:34 ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL FhL FhL Fhx ThL TEL TAL Thn Thr TEr

(Note 26) (Note 26) (Note (3))

(fiz2s)  (HiEw)  (Kie)
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1818 16,916 272,255 19,664 21337 (163,011) 293,187 723,544 1,183,892 27,924 1,211,816
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - (6,656) - - 170,108 163,452 (3,069) 160,383
Placing of new shares REHMRH 3383 532,900 - - - - - 536,283 - 536,283
Business combination under common control ERBHTHERAH - - - - (755,905) - - (755,905) - (755,905)
Payment of dividend AR - - - - - (50,747) - (50,747) - (50,747)
At 31 December 2014 20145125318 20,299 805,155 19,664 14,681 (918,916) 242,440 893,652 1,076,975 24,855 1,101,830
At 1 January 2015 R201551818 20,299 805,155 19,664 14,681 (918,916) 242,440 893,652 1,076,975 24,855 1,101,830
Total comprehensive income 2ENFEE - - = (70,932) - - 280,134 209,202 16,624 225,826
Payment of dividend ERRE - - - - - (52,777) - (52,777) - (52,777)
At 31 December 2015 #2015%128318 20,299 805,155 19,664 (56,251) (918,916) 189,663 1,173,786 1,233,400 41,479 1,274,879
(a) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (a) RIEE R BEG RIEH - ARRRFPRZHEA

portion of the profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries has

been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve REES ([BRFHEE] A
fund (the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

HEEFEEZERARAR 2015FFH

AIH RN D BB EAEIRNCEBRRES R
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nv_\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLEFEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating RETHZHERE
activities
Cash used in operations KEFAZRE 37 (353,413) (21,800)
Interest paid X AFE (225,986) (130,765)
Income tax paid XIS H (19,180) (40,789)
Net cash used in operating activities 4% EENFT A 2 I & /558 (598,579) (193,354)
Cash flows from investing REFTBZHERE
activities
Interest received Ug B F) 8, 168,190 124,331
Payment for acquisition of a S E B AR Z
subsidiary FRIE 35 (68,175) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEME RERRE-
equipment, investment properties REMENBLEE
and intangible assets (89,256) (53,825)
Payment for acquisition of property iﬁﬂ& BYIEEEE
transfer right FRIA - (312,099)
Payment for available-for-sale AL EemEE
financial assets | (759,939) (328,138)
Proceeds from disposal of HERIHHESREE
available-for-sale financial assets TS sIE 676,884 214,552
Proceeds from disposal of 50% equity HER —HAE QA Z
interest in a joint venture 50% A% 7 1 5 BT 15 5108 5,968 65,628
Decrease/(increase) in short-term B (1) e ETE R
deposits and investments I E 1,412,335 (3,259,010)
Proceeds from government grants I %6 B P15 5008 - 4,872
Provision of entrusted loan REHEITER (163,527) (507,054)
Dividends received Ug B % 8 19,098 12,621
Proceeds from repayment of BE-HEEZRER
entrusted loan by third parties Fri& 5038 214,854 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) & /EBEE, (FTA)Z
investing activities H& F5E 1,416,432 (4,038,122)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLEFEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHET FHET

Cash flows from financing METHZRERE

activities
Net proceeds from placing of Bc & ¥ 10 FT 15 5K I8 F 58

new shares - 536,283
Proceeds from bank and RITREMEE

other borrowings Fri8mIE = 1,456,477
Repayment of bank and other BERITREMES

borrowings (430,889) (632,562)
Dividend paid TR E (52,777) (50,747)
Payment for business combination X ¥4 HF 2 7 E - (755,905)
Net proceeds from issuance of BITEREBEREEGES

unsecured corporate bonds FriG 58 38 - 3,421,244
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE (A EE

financing activities 2R FE (483,666) 3,974,790
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRkEEEEY

and cash equivalents B CRL) FE 334,187 (256,686)
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEH) v & (15,531) (961)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHekReEED

beginning of the year 534,134 791,781
Transfer to disposal group classified B E|H B AFERE 2

as held for sale HEAR 25 (156,323) -
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2BESREASEEY

end of the year 696,467 534,134

TEHEFEEERERAT 20155 F8H | 65



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuit chips, and the development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK dollar”), unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and certain available-for-sale financial
assets which are carried at fair value.

1. —RER

FHREFEEERERAT ([ARF]) A KR
FeERESFMKL YWRERELBELENBRE
FERR - ARAIRNDEBEBHERZFABER AR L
™ o AR AW FEM T S EE A & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARBZBERERARATHETFEEEXEH
BERAR ([FHETFEE]) (—XRPEARK
B (THRBE)KSZ2BE)

ARAEEMBAR (RHE[AEENETEZE
BEERERBCH 2RAMBEE UREFES
ERMEXEZERREE-

frRBERIN RERA M BERERAET (1HBT])
51 %R o

2. EASTHHERHE

RENGAMBRRARANEZ S BRET
T BB BERN IEFBRR—EEBERRA
BEBZFE-

2.1 REEXE
@ FEBBYBEREELR LA

REMBBRRIDBEEBGAMAERMHZME
ERANEBTHREEN ([HATHHREEA])
MiFR - ZFEEMBREMETEERARS
FRAERABRZEZ EMARA ([ ETRA) i@
AEBERTE HREMBHREREBRELKAERE
e URREVERETAHLESREED
B (BAAEIR) MELEET-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules (Cont'd)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
had adopted the following amended standards and
interpretation that are relevant to its operations and
effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January
2015:

Annual improvements  Changes from the 2010-2012 cycle of

2012 the annual improvements project
Annual improvements  Changes from the 2011-2013 cycle of
2013 the annual improvements project

HKAS 19 (amendments) Employee benefits

The adoption of the above amended standards and
interpretation did not have significant impact on the results
or financial position of the Group for the current year.

2. EASHEEREE (&)

21 wWEEE(F)
@) EBEHFRTEAR LTHR (&

RAETABEMBREEANGE AWM BRRAMRE
RETHRZEHEE -EEEEEAASED
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(b)  FAER ERIEET K2 FE

REZE2015F12A83MBIEFERN KREB DN
Ty EBERNA2015F1 A1 BHBZ S5
B AR 2 ST R MR R

20125 F ot 20106 2202F BH 2 FEK
#IEE 22
2013F [ o 20011FEZE2013F R 2 FEW
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BEBEENFE19%% REEREF
(1&37)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 - F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont'd)

The following new and amended standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been issued
but are not effective for the accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2015 and have not been early adopted:

Annual improvements  Changes from the 2012-2014 cycle
2014 of the annual improvements project
(effective from 1 January 2016)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods
(amendments) of depreciation and amortisation
(effective from 1 January 2016)

HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets between

HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or
(amendments) joint venture (effective date not yet
determined)
HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial
(amendments) statements (effective from

1 January 2016)
HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative (effective from

(amendments) 1 January 2016)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (effective from
1 January 2018)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(effective from 1 January 2018)

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above
new and amended standards to the Group's financial
position and performance.

2. EASHEERHE (&)

2.1 mEEE(E)
(b) 775/7/—;37 &'5// ﬁﬁ//@zufﬁuff#( \)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(c) Going concern

As disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has liabilities under unsecured
bonds in the principal amount of Renminbi (“RMB")
2,750,000,000 (the “Bonds”) due for repayment on 16
January 2017, which is just beyond twelve months from
the date of these financial statements (but within twelve
months from the date of approval of these financial
statements). In determining whether the Company will
continue as a going concern for the next twelve months
from the date of these financial statements, the directors
have relied on the financial undertaking provided by CEC,
the ultimate holding company of the Company, to the
Company in the form of a keepwell deed (the “Keepwell
Deed”) in connection with the issue of the Bonds.

Under the Keepwell Deed, if the Company at any time
determines that it has insufficient liquidity to meet its
payment obligations as they fall due, it shall promptly notify
CEC of the shortfall and CEC shall make available to the
Company, before the due date of the relevant payment
obligations under the Bonds, funds sufficient to enable the
Group to meet such payment obligations in full as they fall
due.

2. EASHEERHE (&)

21 RBEE(E)

B BRRW 27 IRE - A AT E T
EreRBEARE ([AR®])2,750,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(c) Going concern (Cont'd)

Taking into account the financial resources available to
the Group, including the internally generated funds, the
available committed borrowing facilities and the aforesaid
financial support provided by CEC, the directors consider
that there are sufficient financial resources available to the
Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and
to carry on its business as a going concern for the next
twelve months from the date of these financial statements.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

(d) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the year ended 31 December
2015, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.

(e) Change in functional currency of the Company

In prior years, the directors regarded HK dollar as the
functional currency of the Company. On 16 January
2014, the Company issued 4.70% unsecured bonds due
2017 in the principal amount of RMB2,750 million and
the Company’s funds from financing activities have been
primarily denominated in RMB since then. It is also the
Company’s present intention to raise any future funds in
RMB. The directors reassessed the Company’s functional
currency and decided to change it from HK dollar to RMB
with effect from 1 January 2014 due to the change in the
currency of financing and the fact that majority of the
future cash receipts (mainly dividend income) and payments
(mainly interest expense) of the Company are expected to
be in RMB.

2. EASHEEREE (&)

21 wWEEE(F)
©  FELE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business combination by the
Group. The consideration transferred for an acquisition
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in the
income statement or as a change to other comprehensive
income in the statement of comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Acquisition-related transaction costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.10). Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company'’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, whichever is shorter and regardless of the effective
date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet dates or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination (Cont'd)

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has been
recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated financial
statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's
investment in an associate includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(d) Associates (Cont'd)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of result of an associate” in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(e) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined it to be a joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in a joint venture is
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investment in a joint venture includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint venture.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
o “share of result of a joint venture” in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint venture have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollar, which is the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “finance income/
(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
"“other income and gains — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2.

2.4

(©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income.

78
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold 5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other income and
gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred in property less any impairment
losses. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time that the relevant
assets are completed and available for use. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the definition
of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or
for which the market has become less active continues
to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair values are
recognised within “other income and gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect
of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is under construction
or development for future use as investment property is
classified as investment property under construction. Where
fair value of investment properties under construction is not
reliably measurable, the property is measured at cost until
the earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.

2. EARESTTHEHE &)

26 REYWHE(F)

BREMEB BRI BRHEAEBHRXZ KA
K (IER)BERAR -ERNERL REWE
BRARAEDI - A BRI R4 E R 5 E 3R
EAMETNARME AABENREBEERTS
BRatE W EREENIEE 3 SRR IE
HORHE - WAREERZFER NEEKXH
HAib G ETT A Pl HE TR BTSN ER K
FHRECRER -ERYHRERFREVMEZ
BREMF EMGERETRIKEYEMEE
BAREAE - RAAEREHRESARERAN
[EAWA K Yy — 58 P ER -

BEMEZARERR (EFEE)KERAHE
ZHEWARZBTH R Z KRB WA -
ARETRER ERUEETZYERYPNEM
BEm -

BEZHERBEZKRARBEREBR Z RHKLK
B RIRA AR AR S B A RE Al S
AER - e ABEZIREE PR EMAEER
RERAEREL 2 BAFARGARERX
B o

W—BREMEXNRERYE AAREDER
ME -BEERE EREDBEERZARE M
St B A S A A E AR o 3R IE B 2 ek R P DA
RARERENDERENYE BOBR/EREK
BEVMEX - BHEBRREMEZAABEREASEFE
B ZOEEURANEFE BEEYEEK 2B
HA AR ERAAEFEZEHMEZREER
1Fe

PEHEFEEERERAT 2015F5F8H | 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont'd)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
as a revaluation. The resulting increase in the carrying
amount is recognised in other comprehensive income and
increases revaluation surplus within equity. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
the remaining part of the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and increases revaluation surplus
within equity. For a transfer from completed properties held
for sale or properties under development to investment
properties that will be carried at fair value, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

2.7 Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, and included in inventories.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs, depreciation of machinery and
equipment, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets
and professional fees incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle.

2. BEARETHRBEH)

26 REYWHE(F)

W—HERYEHANE H%Lﬁﬁﬁi?%?ﬁﬁ%%’%%
AMEZEREENNEREERZAREBEZE
MERSEM- Eﬁ?%ZﬁEE@E’Ji‘BDE\AHﬂ
EEWNSEERLIEMERT 2 EERH- %ﬁﬁ
fiid & e B R AT B OB R E R R - Rlx s

WA W e R R Eﬁ%ﬁ’]iﬂﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%
SmPERLEMEST 2ERRK - UERKELE
MEZBRYMEIEZYEERIREDE Kk
RAABETER WEEXANENAAER
HiREEZANZEEENEREM A BB E

e

27 HEEWE

EEME (BIERRFER) RBKAERATEE
FEME 2BEEIR TR FEKLZ2ER
AEXGBREPHENERTYRHEEMEIA

(?DB%L}EHE’JT‘*;@M%%FEEZ&@I%TJFME%@%
BRA) > HERBRERITHRIEEHEREE

MERBERABRRFAERREES 2 T e ME
FAAS  BREERRR B RRETE BEREER
BERMEZBERAREXRER-

EERVEFAREZE  AEVEROBESRY
BE RIEBVEAERENEZERKHEAB
BIERWEERDR-

82  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights. For the land use rights held for
self-use, the upfront payments are recorded as a separate
asset and are amortised to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over their lease periods.
For the land use rights held for sale, the upfront payments
are recorded as land use rights held for sale. Land use
rights held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

2.9 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below) (or disposal groups),
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates) and investment properties,
which are classified as held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in Note 2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale and discontinued operations (Cont'd)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of
the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to
sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

2.12 Financial assets
2.12.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables” (Note 2.74), “cash and cash equivalents”
(Note 2.15) and “short-term deposits and investments” in
the balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in the other category. They are included
in non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment within
1 year of the balance sheet date, which are classified as
current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.12.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired.
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other income and gains — net” when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other income and gains — net”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.12.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement
and in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not subsequently reversed. Impairment
testing of trade and other receivables is described in Note
2.14.

2.13 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

The accounting policy on properties under development is
set out in Note 2.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When the receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.17 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the government
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. Government grant relating to an
asset is included in non-current liabilities, which is credited
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.
Government grant relating to an expense item is deferred
and recognised as income in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Current and deferred taxation (Cont'd)
(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont'd)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference
in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on
a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to make
contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards of properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated balance sheet
as advances from customers under current liabilities.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.25 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.27 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.27 Research and development costs (Cont'd)

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk in
respect of HK dollar against RMB. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. In additions,
the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If HK dollar had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have been
HK$197,000 higher/lower (2014: HK$113,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of HK dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, entrusted loans and short-term investments,
the Group does not have significant interest-bearing
assets. The average interest rate on deposits held in banks
and other financial institutions at 31 December 2015
was approximately 1.92% (2014: 2.63%) per annum.
The average interest rate on short-term investments at
31 December 2015 was approximately 3.40% (2014:
4.42%) per annum. The entrusted loan to an associate at
31 December 2015 bears interest at 9% (2014: 9%) per
annum. Any change in the interest rate from time to time
is not considered to have significant impact to the Group's
performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group'’s interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank and other
borrowings and unsecured corporate bonds. The bank
and other borrowings were at fixed and variable rates and
the unsecured corporate bonds were at fixed rate and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term deposits and investments and trade and other
receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
balance sheet date is their carrying value. The Group has
policies and procedures in place to ensure they are made to
counterparties with acceptable credit quality.

All the Group’s deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term investments are placed or
invested in high quality financial institutions without
significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the
credit quality. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure on credit
risk are set out in Note 22.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities by
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
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31 December 2015

201512 A31H
More than
1 year
but less
than 2 years
Within 1 year —FHE Total
—FR BrREBME &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FERT
Unsecured corporate bonds EEMOCEES 154,277 3,359,623 3,513,900
Trade and other payables g5 KEMENKIE
(excluding salary and welfare (T B REN E R
payables and other taxes payables) HipEHIE) 384,845 - 384,845
539,122 3,359,623 3,898,745
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

3. BIXERMRER &)

3.1 MHEBRREE (&)
@ RBEDEE (&)

31 December 2014

2014124318
More than More than
1 year 2 years
but less but less
than 2 years than 5 years
Within 1 year —FNE ME £ Total
—FR  BAEBME EBEIEELF a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAET FET FET
Unsecured corporate bonds BEALEES 163,842 163,842 3,567,920 3,895,604
Bank and other borrowings RITREMES 94,481 1,274,268 - 1,368,749
Trade and other payables B o5 REMENFE
(excluding salary and welfare (TBIEEMNEH R
payables and other taxes payables) HAEAHE) 518,426 - - 518,426
776,749 1,438,110 3,567,920 5,782,779

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings and unsecured
corporate bonds, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, which comprises issued equity and reserves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets, plus net debt.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 is as follows:

3. HX¥EKRER#£)

3.2 EXRRBRER(£Z)

AEERBERERE tﬁ%ﬁ%éﬂiﬂﬁwwttﬁi
TIABETSFERNE N ERETE - B FRRIRE
BERERRe MReEEY M°§ZIS | BRIR AR
BEERBEXRMIIRZESNER FEAE-

M2015FE K2014FE12 8310 KEE 2 ERA G
ELERT -

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Bank and other borrowings (Note 30) RITMEMES (#172£30) = 1,332,462

Unsecured corporate bonds (Note 27) EIRHCEES (Wit27) 3,258,479 3,436,724
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)  Ji - 34 MIREHEY

(K1at24) (696,467) (534,134)

Net debt (EREE ] 2,562,012 4,235,052

Total equity e 1,274,879 1,101,830

Total capital ﬁ%ﬂimmam 3,836,891 5,336,882

Gearing ratio BERBEEE 67% 79%

In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s capital risk is
not significant.

3.3  Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.
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3.

33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the financial assets that are measured at fair
value during the year are as follows:

Available-for-sale

3.

3.3

MREREE (&)

DAREMRE (F

E_ROREAEDNBRE-LABEZR
BN BEEXRERNER (AMER) REE
(BERITE)BRZBESL-

FEZRArEAETANEREERREZIF
ABETSHEE (BRUBRZ2EHB)HES
A

REBUARREAEZEREEZEHWT:

financial assets AHHEESREE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- Wealth management products - EEEER £ -t B=® At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHL FHL FAT
At 1 January 2014 R2014F181H - - - -
Exchange differences fE N ZR - - 501 501
Additions 2 - - 328,138 328,138
Disposals HE - - (214,552) (214,552)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12831H - - 114,087 114,087
At 1 January 2015 20151818 - - 114,087 114,087
Exchange differences fERZE - - (8,128) (8,128)
Additions byl - - 759,939 759,939
Disposals HE - - (676,884) (676,884)
Transfer to disposal group BRIDERBE
classified as held for sale (Note 25) HeEZ HERR(H725) - = (41,777) (41,777)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015%12A31H - - 147,237 147,237

See Note 14 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different jurisdictions.
Estimation and judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred taxation provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in the
PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the dividend
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. During
the year, the directors reassessed the dividend policy of
its major subsidiary established in the PRC, CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), based on
the Group’s current business plan and financial position,
certain retained earnings generated by Huada Electronics
would be distributed to its non-PRC registered intermediate
holding company and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this
respect was provided in the year to the extent that such
earnings are estimated by the directors to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$1,172,506,000 (2014:
HK$831,921,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of the
PRC in the foreseeable future.

4.2 Impairment of trade and other receivables

Management reviews its trade and other receivables for
objective evidence of impairment. Significant financial
difficulty of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered as objective
evidence that a receivable is impaired. In determining this,
management makes judgments as to whether there is
observable data indicating that there has been a significant
change in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether
there have been significant changes with adverse effect
on the market and economic environment in which the
debtor operates. Where there is objective evidence of
impairment, management makes judgments as to whether
an impairment loss should be recognised as an expense.

4. FEGEAETRAE

41 FEHRRELEHRE

AEBEAN AR BEERGAFTER - REE T
SREREB BN SELAETRAE -REE
EBERTEERI MAEORABEERRZ
MBET - MAxSEFRIEREBBERA RN
MER 2B RSEENEBEERYEHZHME
BB ARBEERE -

BIEFPBEDEEHE B2008F1 818 #£ &
EHRBEKZHRA R REFINGEE DR B
WI0%EBHAEH - RAFR EFENAE
BIEREEAZ PR ETERKLRAFH
ZIEMBATILRPEEAEFRITAREE
NAI([EABEF])MRERE EREFHET
RIBBEME DR T EAPBEIBINY R REIERAE -
E - NEBEARATER B KSR G R AR
M RAFERERECHEAGIELBE-

AEBTERBEHEHTRMNEARNREETER
AITA R RIS HFEIHEINEEEA1,172,506,000
75 70 (20144F £ 831,921,000/ 7T ) B9 % ) 8 & IR
ERIBEE

4.2 EBFRHMEWKERRE

BEEEHNEES MEMBEYIRE L EERE
EiE - BB AL RERY R - B A R REWE
SETTI R E A - DA R IE R OB EI K AR
RERYFIARBERERE BT RMER
EEETHE AL BRBIBBERNEBANER
EENBERES B LHEBARBEAENT
SREBREBRAIFNTZENERES AR
%Eﬁ%%*%ﬁ@%% AR EE B R R
7 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

4.2 Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Cont'd)

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables of
the Group at 31 December 2015 is HK$6,707,000 (2014:
HK$26,407,000).

4.3  Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the directors assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value of investment properties of the Group. The fair
value of investment properties are assessed annually by an
independent professional valuer. The valuation is principally
based on income approach by taking into account the
terms of any existing leases and other external evidence
such as current market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation rates
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation techniques and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in Note
14.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the following two operating
segments:

- Design and sale of integrated circuit chips; and

- Development and management of electronic
information technology industrial parks.

As disclosed in Note 25, the development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks segment was classified as discontinued
operation of the Group.

4. FEGFMHEFTRAE &)

42 ESZREMEWRSERE (&)

AREEM2015F12A31HWNE 5 K& HA4bFE Uk 208
Rk 1B % & 56,707,000 7T (20144 : 26,407,000
BIL) °

43 REWEAIRE

FRAEZEFLEEBHARBREMELR
BEFZEIZERR-REVEZAABEFIH
BUYEEGHEMELEG -ZEETZERNKE
& FEAEMR AR 2 GRS EAMIMEF R (10
RETe AR E 2 RN IZHSNHEE
T%)Iﬁ)ﬂ&@%ﬂﬁﬂéﬁZé?Zfﬁﬁ 5 18 5
ZEREULERAE -REYMEZHETERER
BRERAEMT 147 3 5E -

5. WARZHER

ANEE B A EEA T REZED R :

-  EREBLCHZRFALEE R

- BTEERELEZERRER-

MANMI 25 P EE  EFEERMEXE 2 HR K
EENHBEROBASAREDKIERE 2 XK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess

WA D ERES (&)

2\ 3z

1R

ERECRBESR (TE22ERKE) DEHEN
EREMDEERAANRE BT
R % W 8 0E

SEHH - E
b 480 F) (R BHER 5 it

performance and allocate resources. The directors assess NEIFBWA KRR ) AFHEE R - &5 20a9 I
the performance of the two operating segments based ARFEEZHWT -
on a measure of operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate interest income and expenses. The segment
revenue and results are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z2015F12A31BELEE
Discontinued
operation -
Development
and
Continuing management
operations - of electronic
Design and information
sale of technology
integrated industrial
circuit chips parks
BFELE: CRIELEZ
ES E3
ERER ETEEREM
iy EXEZ Total
R REE BRERERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FExT
Segment revenue oA
Sale of integrated circuit products HESKBEREM® 1,264,001 - 1,264,001
Rental income from investment REMENHESWA
properties - 13,291 13,291
1,264,001 13,291 1,277,292
Share of result of an associate FEfE — B & N RIEE - 44,276 44,276
Share of result of a joint venture Y i I /NI = (2,571) (2,571)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ ¥ 8 A Bz - 95,649 95,649
Reversal of impairment provision/ FERE (BE)

(impairment provision) 12,792 (156) 12,636
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ~ #7 & I # i5 & A (50,805) (5,040) (55,845)
Segment results DEELE 321,194 123,019 444,213
Unallocated corporate interest income RABHARFERA 116,518
Unallocated corporate expenses AAEHARRAZ (42,160)
Finance costs — net BB AR —FHE (166,796)
Profit before taxation BR 758 A g A 351,775
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

5. WARZHER (#)

HE2014F12A318 ILEE

Discontinued

operation —
Development
and
Continuing management
operations — of electronic
Design and information
sale of technology
integrated industrial
circuit chips parks
RERE 2 BRIEEZEZ
55— E 3o
EREE EFEERM
B2z EXEZ Total
Rt RIHE EERER A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FTAT
Segment revenue oA
Sale of integrated circuit products HEENERER 1,351,723 - 1,351,723
Rental income from investment KREMENHSBA
properties - 5,339 5,339
1,351,723 5,339 1,357,062
Share of result of an associate i3l /NCIE 3| - 18,840 18,840
Share of result of a joint venture JEIE—HaERAIEE - (942) (942)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ %A 7 B - 23,859 23,859
Reversal of impairment provision/ AERE S (BE)

(impairment provision) 51,265 (10,120) 41,145
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7 & N # §5 & F (34,288) (6,828) (41,116)
Segment results DEEE 326,076 (6,106) 319,970
Unallocated corporate interest income KA BEER R F B UL A 76,658
Unallocated corporate expenses AABEHARRAE (30,236)
Finance costs — net BB AR —FE (150,218)
Profit before taxation B 5% A g A 216,174

Unallocated corporate interest income and expenses
are common income and expenses generated from the
operating segments as a whole and therefore they are not
included in the measure of the segments performance.

RO BN RBNBWRA N SEE

DEREEEE £

EERNEKRWARFX - A RAADEBRE O

EELE
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Revenues of HK$213,306,000 (2014: HK$174,233,000),
HK$173,697,000 (2014: HK$172,474,000),
HK$168,271,000 (2014: HK$161,426,000) and
HK$148,295,000 (2014: HK$128,834,000), respectively,
are derived from 4 external customers of the Group. These
revenues are attributable to the operating segment of
design and sale of integrated circuit chips. Save as disclosed
herein, no revenues derived from a single external customer
have exceeded 10% of the total revenues of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group's revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC and over 90% of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC. No geographical
information is therefore presented.

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS - NET

5. WARDEESR (&)

A #0213,306,0007% 7T (20144 : 174,233,000/%
JC) * 173,697,000/ 7T (20144 : 172,474,000/
JC) ' 168,271,000/ T (20144 : 161,426,000/
70 ) 148,295,000/ 7T (20144 : 128,834,000
BIL) CWADRIREAREBE 2 OEBINREP 3%
SEWABBREXRER N 2R MEEZEE
DE-BRAXFTIEEEIIN WEEMREE—INR
EFZBABBARERBWAZI0% °

%50 2K S5 B 3100% 2 M A SR B o 45 AL
#B3B90% 2 35 7 B AR 1A °P B - S R R
B AR

6. HMWARWKE-FH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BERKE XK
Government grants BT 7 B 112,808 63,279
Exchange losses b 5 1R (4,439) (956)
Interest income on short-term HETFREEERNBRA
deposits and investments 56,940 62,147
Interest income on available-for-sale AtEEEREE
financial assets F B U A 4,407 1,056
Others Hip (6,091) (3,118)
163,625 122,408
Discontinued operation ERIERE ¥R
Government grants BT 48 BN 6,784 8,254
Fair value gains on investment properties REMENRD R ERE
(Note 14) (Kiat14) 95,649 23,859
Interest income on entrusted loans ZEE R B YA 52,827 13,455
Interest income on available-for-sale AHHEEREE
financial assets B WA 2,344 -
Others Hi 3,651 (2,702)
161,255 42,866
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

7. BMEESEIZEH

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

FIVE8E & RS ~ 35 N T 35 1 B R AR R 1T R X2
ZEROMIT:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

(Restated)

(&%)
Continuing operations HERE XK
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER

(Notes 13, 15 and 16) (Htat13 - 15%16) 50,805 34,288
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERANAX (A778) 174,602 178,267
Changes in inventories of finished goods R an M A B an

and work in progress FEEH 111,633 42,682
Raw materials and consumables used BT R A L I #E 5 601,854 738,556
Reversal of impairment for trade and B 5 K H A EWRIE 2 R E

other receivables (Note 22) B (Kit22) (828) (38,340)
Reversal of provision for inventories FEBERER (KFit21)

(Note 21) (11,964) (12,925)
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZKEBERX 16,865 17,392
Auditor’s remuneration % S5 B BN 6,787 3,942
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER

(Notes 13, 15 and 16) (Hfat13 - 1516) 5,040 6,828
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERANAX (A778) 19,414 22,217
Impairment provision for trade and other B 5 N EH At WRIE 2 RE

receivables (Note 22) B (Bat22) 156 10,120
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZKERERX 817 -
Auditor’s remuneration % ELRD B & 335 317

Research and development costs for the continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
HK$230,220,000 (2014: HK$214,187,000) and mainly
comprised of employee costs of HK$120,957,000 (2014:
HK$114,663,000) and material costs of HK$33,894,000
(2014: HK$34,334,000). No research and development
costs were capitalised during the year ended 31 December

2015 (2014 nil).

&) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EER®AMAX
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Continuing operations BEKE XK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWET 150,593 159,087
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET IR
(Notes (a) and (b)) (Hiat@) kb)) 24,009 19,180
174,602 178,267
Discontinued operation BRIERE XK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMNEWRER 17,255 20,315
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET B
(Note (b)) (K1:# b)) 2,159 1,902
19,414 22,217
(@)  The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible (a) AEEAEFESCEREERUBESE

employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions
to MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred.

(b) The Company's PRC subsidiaries participate in (b)
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to retirement schemes in the PRC and are expensed

as incurred.

o AKEHREEAIZEHARELR
SIERI S

ARREREZHERRREHBEED R
M2 EERETRRE - EAREM
THRKREREZFTEERKER ZRIK
TEE-ZFHEMNE AR RIKEBIE
HERERELERFIER -
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd) 8. EEENEX(#)

()  Five highest paid individuals (c) HBBRSHFHMAL

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose FARNTAEREGFMER 2 AB AT 2B &40
paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as ™~

follows:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREYES 3,429 5,042
Bonuses TE4L 17,859 15,374
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRGTEIH K 281 364
21,569 20,780
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals hEGEaRFMALEERS (2014F: —R)ES

included two (2014: one) directors and their emoluments mEEzMEN TFUTEHE:

were within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7t — 5,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/% 7t — 5,500,000/ 7T 2 1
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FR-AEBYERNRIEERTMHA TSI EM
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join P& ER B AL B NEAR 2 BESEREET
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of ZfHfE -
office.
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

9. FINANCE COSTS - NET 9. MEREK-FHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEKE XK
Finance costs: B KA
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEMEZH 178,058 181,454
Finance income: BEIWA
— Interest income on cash and — A EReEFEEY
cash equivalents FEWA (30,758) (40,476)
Finance costs — net BB AN —F 58 147,300 140,978
Discontinued operation BRIELSE XK
Finance costs: BB
— Interest expense on borrowings —EEN S H 45,389 37,468
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties B TR E
under development (Note (a)) BRI eRE (Wit@E)) (20,762) (13,199)
24,627 24,269
Finance income: AW -
— Interest income on cash and - REeRREEEY
cash equivalents FEWA (5,131) (15,029)
Finance costs — net BbE KA —F 5 19,496 9,240
(@)  The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed (@) EHZE2015F12A31ALEEE —RBEAR
generally and used for the qualifying assets was ARAEREEMNESER ZER L
4.60% for the year ended 31 December 2015 R 54.60% (20144 :5.00% ) °

(2014: 5.00%).
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e ERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &
10. TAXATION 10. #H1E
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATT
(Restated)
(E3)
Continuing operations BEKE XK
Current taxation REERHIE
— PRC corporate income tax — R EPEMER 16,640 19,687
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —EomEMNZ
(Note (c)) BT
(Bi&t) 8,448 5,958
25,088 25,645
Deferred taxation IR AEFH I8
— PRC corporate income tax —FHEDEMER 3,711 16,654
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits —ROBLE A2
(Note (c)) BT
(Bi&t) 1,212 3,019
4,923 19,673
30,011 45,318
Discontinued operation CRIEKEZEK
Deferred taxation IR AE TR IE
— PRC corporate income tax — Bl EMFH 25,006 3,817
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(9]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

TAXATION (Cont'd)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profit in Hong Kong during the year (2014: nil).

Huada Electronics qualified as a “high and new
technology enterprise” and thus enjoyed a 15%
preferential tax rate from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017 instead of the statutory tax rate
of 25%. In 2014, Huada Electronics qualified
as an “Integrated Circuit Design Enterprises in
National Planning Layout” and thus enjoyed a 10%
preferential tax rate.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when a
foreign investment enterprise distributed dividends
out of the profits earned from 1 January 2008
onwards to its overseas investors, such dividends are
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

BIE (%)

HRASERAEFEARBELEEL(T
fa] FE SR B s A - AR 48 L & B RS BLAE
B (20145 4| ) -

ERETHBEER [ EFEMEE] Bt
H2015F1B1H®£E2017F 128318
BEFEX15%2EBEMEMIEEERE
25% ° R2014%F  FEXRBEFHETE S [BHK
REMPEAEKRERERTEE] ARER
10% 2 BEHE-

BEFBICEMESHENBBABRTE  FE
BARAZIIERECENRBEMERINGE
EHEBE2008F 1 ATHEBEL R EF %
AR B BEMRNI0% B FTSH -
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

10. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation expense on the (d)
Group's profit before taxation and the theoretical

10. HIE (&)

AEBBRBADE N 2 HIRM X BIZE B &
FOEEMEFEE 2 EmBIA 2 HRINT -

taxation that would arise using the respective
applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BHREKE XK
Profit before taxation B 50 A A 193,081 218,064
Calculated at respective applicable REBBREEME
statutory tax rates EBIE 60,559 63,014
Effect of tax concession MIEBER R ZE (22,108) (39,095)
Research and development 5t M Fi &
costs additional deductions B 2N EE SN BR (23,923) (20,782)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ] #0185 5% 877 3,066
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MESEBERTERIE 2
taxation 2 (20,514) 9,367
Withholding tax on distributed profits and Eoil&f RAEE
current year's undistributed profits RO Bm Az
TIPSR 9,660 8,977
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset WREREEHRIBEEZ
was recognised (Note (e)) MIBEE (Mite) 25,460 20,771
Taxation expense MIER 30,011 45,318
Discontinued operation CRIERE 2K
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERE R, (E18) 158,694 (1,890)
Calculated at respective applicable BEBEREEME
statutory tax rates FTE A 39,674 (473)
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (10,426) (4,475)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes  “NA F1H% 5 2 425 4,162
Temporary differences for which no deferred WEBEREEHIBEEZ
tax asset was recognised TRER 2,407 2,446
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  EN B KR 2 FiBEE 18 (7,077) -
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset WERBREEHBEEEZ
was recognised (Note (e)) MIAEE (Kate) ) 3 2,157
Taxation expense MIERAX 25,006 3,817
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

10. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(e) Deferred taxation

10. HIE (&)
(e) IEEFIE

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015128318 2014F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Deferred tax assets BIERRTEE E 24,963 106,254
Less: Offsetting of deferred tax liabilities Bt EAHRIE TR IA R & - (46,081)
Deferred tax assets (net) BERIEEE (OF5) 24,963 60,173
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (5,686) (53,175)
Less: Offsetting of deferred tax assets i IR I A E - 46,081
Deferred tax liabilities (net) RIERHIBEEE OFFE) (5.686) (7,094)
19,277 53,079

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority are

i At BB 8H ELAR R B A5 MR 2 BR B F R XE
MAEERBEZEZHNT :

as follows:
Deferred
Impairment Salary and  government
of welfare grants
inventories payables B Others Total
Deferred tax assets ELEBBRERE FERE AN BB Hity &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2014 201451818 3,311 6,634 82,171 19,898 112,014
Exchange differences fEHZERE (17) (26) (344) (10) (397)
(Charged)/credited to (;tA) /EelaER
the income statement (1,293) (884) (15,689) 12,503 (5,363)
At 31 December 2014 R2014512831H 2,001 5,724 66,138 32,391 106,254
At 1 January 2015 R2015F181A8 2,001 5,724 66,138 32,391 106,254
Exchange differences MEHZER (85) (278) (2,690) (2,065) (5,118)
Charged to the income AR
statement (814) (1,441) (43,265) - (45,520)
Transfer to disposal group EREOBEBREE
classified as held for sale HEZHEAFR
(Note 25) (Hizt25) - - (12,081) (18,572) (30,653)
At 31 December 2015 R2015512831H 1,102 4,005 8,102 11,754 24,963
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

10. TAXATION (Cont'd) 10. FIE(£)

(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd) (e) EZEBIHE (&)
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains ROBEFZ Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEE DRAERE B EH Hit =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiET FHET
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1818 34,409 7,739 524 42,672
Exchange differences iE =R (56) - 4 (52)
Charged to the income statement KRR 13,321 3,019 1,787 18,127
Reclassification to current ENBEEEPRMMEHAE
income tax payable - (7,572) - (7,572)
At 31 December 2014 ®2014512A31H 47,674 3,186 2,315 53,175
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1H18 47,674 3,186 2,315 53,175
Exchange differences X ZE (2,784) - (109) (2,893)
(Credited)/Charged to the income (HR),/tAHE
statement (18,870) 9,660 2,067 (7,143)
Reclassification to current ENREEHREMNMEHAE
income tax payable - (8,448) = (8,448)
Transfer to disposal group BRI HERBE
classified as held for sale HEZHERR
(Note 25) (Bfs725) (26,020) - (2,985) (29,005)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015%12A31H - 4,398 1,288 5,686
The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet REEEEBBERI A ZEEBEUTIES
include the following:
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155128318 2014F12H31H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
— To be recovered after more than 12 months — #1218 A 1z Uk El 496 31,544
— To be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Wik El 24,467 28,629
24,963 60,173
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
— To be settled after more than 12 months — R 12{8 A& ER - 3,475
— To be settled within 12 months — B 1218 A RE R 5,686 3,619
5,686 7,094
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

10. TAXATION (Cont'd)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
During the year, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of HK$25,463,000 (2014: HK$22,928,000) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$155,209,000 (2014:
HK$109,685,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income.

11. DIVIDEND

10. ®IE (&)
(e) EEBE(E)

BEMBEENRAE B EBEEMEER
B AIREE B AR 2 BRFEFE IR G@HER
AR - RAFR  REBW R AT A8 LUK AR
o JiE FR 4 0% A 2 E518155,209,00058 7T (20144 :
109,685,000 7T ) 7 33 i iE % 18 & E 25,463,000
77T (20144 22,928,000/ 7T ) ©

11. RE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Proposed dividend EmEE 60,896 52,777

Dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
of HK3.0 cents per share (2014: HK2.6 cents per share) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The total amount of HK$60,896,000 (2014:
HK$52,777,000) of the proposed dividend, calculated
based on the Company’'s number of shares issued at the
date of this annual report, is not recognised as a liability in
these consolidated financial statements.

HE2015F12A31MB EFENREFR3.0F
il (2014F : B2 6B ERESERIRN
WMAGREREERRBAFT RS LHER 57
EE - REAQRANRAFHRAADHITRHEE
SHE R EER B 42 %60,896,000/8 7T (20144 -
52,777,000 7o) WERN R A B HRERANER B
—BEE-
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e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

12. SRER(FE)
SREARF,/ (B8 TR E T 5 8k &

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the following data:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEKSE ¥
Profit for the year from continuing operations RARE=FESE
attributable to owners of the Company JEEZEREY
(HK$'000) E PN
(FET) 163,070 172,746
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU EFRER
for the purposes of basic earnings per share BN 2 BRIt
T8 E 2,029,872,000 1,781,467,573
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERERF (B 8.03 9.70
Discontinued operation CRIERE 2%
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued KANGERFEE
operation attributable to owners of JEMRBE RIS 2
the Company (HK$'000) EB2AFERBHMN,/
(E1]) (T&T) 117,064 (2,638)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU EFRER
for the purposes of basic earnings/(loss) BH/(EE)z
per share TR NEFHEE 2,029,872,000 1,781,467,573
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREARRAF
(&1R) GBIl 5.77 (0.15)
Continuing and discontinued operations BFERER
ERIEREZER
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RARE=FFBEE
the Company (HK$'000) e 2 ANF S i A
(F#xT) 280,134 170,108
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU EGRER
for the purposes of basic earnings per share Bz &R
FHHA 2,029,872,000 1,781,467,573
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SREARZF (B 13.80 9.55

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company

did not have any potential ordinary share outstanding. BEGREERAN -
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e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. WX -BEKREE

Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor  Furniture and  Construction
BFR machinery vehicles fixtures in progress Total
HENELE BERHEES L] BRREE ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET THT THT FEL TR
At 1 January 2014 R201451581H
Cost A 23,400 31,544 16,977 12,659 510 85,090
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (10,901) (20,265) (6,520) (5.211) - (42,897)
Net book amount REFE 12,499 11,279 10,457 7,448 510 42,193
Year ended 31 December 2014  EZ2014512A318
LLFE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 12,499 11,279 10,457 7,448 510 42,193
Exchange differences ERESR 1,053 (476) 751 (17) 131 1,442
Additions NE - 10,196 511 3,042 15,437 29,186
Acquisition of property transfer Ui ¥ ¥ 1
right 361,020 - - - - 361,020
Reclassification from investment ~ #RENEEHE
properties 322 - - - - 322
Disposals & (134) - (477 (30) - (641)
Depreciation nE (7,466) (4,427) (2,847) (4,152) - (18,892)
Closing net book amount FEREEZE 367,294 16,572 8,395 6,291 16,078 414,630
At 31 December 2014 #20145128318
Cost 3% 385,661 41,264 17,762 15,654 16,078 476,419
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (18,367) (24,692) (9,367) (9,363) - (61,789)
Net book amount REFE 367,294 16,572 8,395 6,291 16,078 414,630
Year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015512A31A
LEE
Opening net book amount FOEEFE 367,294 16,572 8,395 6,291 16,078 414,630
Exchange differences EREE (23,317) (1,024) (324) (281) (847) (25,793)
Additions RE 759 487 744 1,240 55,662 58,892
Transfer upon completion TEIER 61,939 - - - (61,939) -
Transfer to investment properties B Z|R B E - - - - (3,197) (3,197)
Disposals & - - (382) (391) - (773)
Depreciation nE (13,407) (5,210) (3,307) (2,440) - (24,364)
Transfer to disposal group BELnkE
classified as held for sale REENE 2 HEET
(Note 25) (H15225) (9,769) - (2,605) (3,877) (3,685) (19,936)
Closing net book amount FREHFE 383,499 10,825 2,521 542 2,072 399,459
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318
Cost 3% 409,900 40,727 10,010 3,546 2,072 466,255
Accumulated depreciation ZTE (26,401) (29,902) (7,489) (3,004) = (66,796)
Net book amount FEFE 383,499 10,825 2,521 542 2,072 399,459

Depreciation expense of HK$2,011,000 (2014:
HK$796,000) and HK$22,353,000 (2014: HK$18,096,000)
has been charged to selling and marketing costs and
administrative expenses, respectively.

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$17,682,000 (2014
HK$17,392,000) relating to the lease of property are
included in the income statement.

PrER T #2,011,000/8 7T (20144 : 796,000
JC) 522,353,000/ 7T (20144 : 18,096,000/
TT)EDRIETAEE KT HHEEKAMITRAY -

BT EYEIEEM17,682,0008 T L (20144 -
17,392,000/ ) Est Al =R v A ERA X -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 - F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the legal title of a building held
for self-use located in the PRC with carrying amount of
HK$320,674,000 (2014: HK$335,942,000) had not been
obtained by the Group. In the opinion of the directors,
there is no legal obstacle in obtaining such legal title.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. M¥E BERRE #)

72015512 4318 » NEBDARBE — BRI A F B
[ 18320,674,000/% 7T(20144F : 355,942,000/ 7T )
< BREFREEEE R ESRBYEEZE
FRWBIEERERE -

14. REYHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Beginning of the year F4) 409,401 391,965
Exchange differences e H =58 (31,152) (1,229)
Transfer from construction in progress EReEEIR
(Note 13) (Bt&E13) 3,197 -
Transfer from properties under development EREATEREME 88,618 -
Reclassification to property, ENEEYE.
plant and equipment 5 & 5% 1 - (322)
Government grants received WA B K 7T 58 B - (4,872)
Fair value gains NaEWkKE 95,649 23,859
Transfer to disposal group classified BRI BRFE
as held for sale (Note 25) HEZEE8HR
(Hiit25) (565,713) -
End of the year FR = 409,401

(a) The investment properties are located in the PRC
and are subject to various tenancies with terms
ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

(b)  The direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental income
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
HK$565,000 (2014: HK$492,000).

(@) ZEREVMEHUNPEALINE20FH2
ZIEBLRE -

(b) MREZE2015F12A31BItFE EEXMS
WAL EMENEZEEE R A565,000
77T (20144 : 492,000/ 7T) ©
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm
of independent and qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuation was
principally based on income approach by taking into
account the terms of any existing leases and other
external evidence such as current market rents or
sales for similar types of properties in the locality,
and using capitalisation rates that reflect current
market expectation for the assets being valued. For
all investment properties, their current uses equates
to the highest and best use.

All of the fair value measurements of the Group's
investment properties were categorised into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note 3.3. There
were no transfers of fair value measurements into or
out of Level 3 during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the management
of the Group works with DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors.

14.
(0

REWE (4)

NEFEREMETR2015F 2014512 A31
BZARBEAHERNEEETMNBERNS
U RNBEERUERNBEEGHEM -BER
TERARNERETHE-ZHBEEXE
ER A st AERBRERO ZIER K
HINEFE T (I AKT b BRI FE R Y %
ZERMSHESIIHEER) WFEARMRE
Fr{EEzEEZREMSEHE 2 EAR LY
RABE -BEREMEREHEBZANR
EFEAERRERS-

AEERMEREVENAAEFEDRR
RARERMNRENE =F - 2R ERG
REN D BFIRENMEI3RN - NFEAR
ZEREYPELEAABAEEALED
E=fk-

RBERR AEEEEERGERITAER
RAARBLILEEERE M2 ANE
AENGHENERBE EEEAAEBEHR
EREY HREFTERKINREA -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) 14. BREVME (£)
Information about fair value measurements using FREANEUEREHEBEEAAERSE (B=
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows: FYWEBERWDT :
Range of
Fair value unobservable Relationship of
at 31 December inputs/weighted unobservable
2015 average inputs
R2015%  Valuation Unobservable BUBE 2 tofair value
Description 1283182  technique(s) inputs YpEE,/ ZUBRzHE
#15 DhE  RERE BUBRRHE NEFYE BARENER
HK$°000
TER
Industrial and dormitory 363,190  Income approach Term yield 3.5% - 10% The higher the term yield,
buildings-Guangxi Wz FHRRE the lower the fair value
T4RBEEEF-ER BRFHREE
AREBE
Reversionary yield 6.3% - 10% The higher the reversionary

Office building-Beijing 28,253  Income approach
BFE-IR W%

Direct comparison
method
BREBA

15 B2 (X o
Bl &

Market rent
migEe

Term yield
FHlEE

Reversionary yield
e

Market rent
misie

Market price
M5B

RMB8.84 -
RMB17.68

per square metre
S5 K

AR #8847

- AR¥17.687C

5%

5%

RMB200

per square metre
SRR
AR#2007T

RMB36,036 -
RMB39,200

per square metre
ST K

AR 36,0367T
- AR 39,2007t

yield, the lower the fair

value
HEERIEE

DA EBIE

The higher the market
rent, the higher the fair
value

mEEsHE
AREEE

The higher the term yield,
the lower the fair value

HRFBREE
DREBE

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

HEERI
AR EHE

The higher the market
rent, the higher the fair
value

mEHeHs:
AREER

The higher the market
price, the higher the fair
value

misEREs
RREHE
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

e

14. BREVME (&)

IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

Range of
Fair value unobservable Relationship of
at 31 December inputs/weighted unobservable
2015 average inputs
R2015%  Valuation Unobservable BUBE 2 tofair value
Description 1283182 technique(s) inputs HEEE,/ BUBEZEE
#iE DfE  ERE BUBER HE MEFHE HALENER
HK$°000
TR
Industrial buildings - Xi'an 174,270  Income approach Term yield 6.5% The higher the term yield,
IXBF-A% W% EHHLKZEZ‘E the lower the fair value
HEEERE
ARESE
Reversionary yield 7%  The higher the reversionary
EFEx yield, the lower the fair
value
HEERREE
AR EBIE
Market rent RMB25-RMB30  The higher the market
2k per square metre  rent, the higher the fair
BIAARARE  value
Br-ARE0T mHESHE
RAEBR
15. LAND USE RIGHTS HELD FOR 15. BRzZLERARE
SELF-USE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Beginning of the year F 1) 15,973 1,641
Exchange differences PE X ZRE (914) 58
Acquisition of property transfer right g S R - 14,674
Amortisation B (1,612) (400)
Transfer to disposal group classified EREIDBERBELEEZ
as held for sale (Note 25) HEBR (Ha225) (228) -
End of the year FR 13,219 15,973

All the land use rights are located in the PRC and with
remaining lease terms ranging from 10 years to 50 years.

As at 31 December 2015, the legal title of a land use right
held for self-use located in the PRC with carrying amount
of HK$13,219,000 (2014: HK$14,289,000) had not been
obtained by the Group. In the opinion of the directors,

there is no legal obstacle in obtaining such legal title.

PHETEEERAERAF 20155 F8

BT i BN RA R ERAFRSGZOEHI02
SOFHEA o

2015812 A318  AEBNARFE —HBANH BIER
E{E13,219,0005% 7T (20144 : 14,289,000/ 7T) 2
ARz T ERAERGALAEE - EERAHEIE
LA RERTEIREER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Computer
software
BB G
HK$'000
FATT
At 1 January 2014 201451818
Cost PR 7S 61,586
Accumulated amortisation ESg 3 (56,732)
Net book amount SR FE 4,854
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZ2014F12831B L FE
Opening net book amount FHIREFE 4,854
Additions INEY 25,423
Amortisation #H (21,824)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 8,453
At 31 December 2014 "2014%F12H831H
Cost DN 87,009
Accumulated amortisation REr#H (78,556)
Net book amount RMEEE 8,453
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12A318 L FE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 8,453
Exchange differences ERERE 5,619
Additions NE 31,239
Amortisation 5 (29,869)
Transfer to disposal group classified ERI DB RFE
as held for sale (Note 25) HEZHEHRR (H7225) 11)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 15,431
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12H831H
Cost PR 7S 123,838
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (108,407)
Net book amount BREFE 15,431

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$29,869,000
(2014: HK$21,824,000) has been charged to research and

development costs under administrative expenses.
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Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEBARIRE-ZFAT
- COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155128318 2014F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, TE—IFE LT

at cost B AE 1,792,992 1,309,185

During 2015, Huada Electronics’ registered capital was
increased from RMB50,000,000 to RMB446,800,000. The
Company subscribed the increase in registered capital
of Huada Electronics by making an additional capital
contribution of RMB396,800,000 in cash to Huada
Electronics.

AERBHIE N EMER-

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

R2015F FEXEFT2aMEARARE
50,000,000 C1E inZE A R #446,800,0007C ° AR
Al LAIE 4 A R #396,800,0007T [A] E

BRI

*F EZHE AR R2015%F &2014F12H318 25

2015 and 2014 are as follows: BT
Interest held
s
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and ) 2015 i ‘ 2014 !
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities paid-in capital ~ Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirecty
8 RYBHERADUE TEREHARER AMRERER E 5E3 Ef it
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
EXET FE BEREAATF integrated circuit chips (2014: RMB50,000,000)
RE SRERTHZ AR %446,800,0007T
et R (20145
AR 50,000,0007C )
China Electronics Technology PRC, limited liability company PRC, holding investments RMB100,000,000 100% - 100% -
Development Co., Ltd MEBRERAH in subsidiaries AR 100,000,007
("CEC Technology”) HE RESFHBARRA
hEEFHEREERAA
([RERE])
China Electronics Beihai Industrial Park  PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and RMB150,000,000 - 100% - 100%
Development Co., Ltd HE BERETAR management of electronic AR #150,000,0007T
REEFILEEXEEEARAR information technology
industrial parks
hE BHEERMEXRL
BRRER
China Electronics Xi'an Industrial Park PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and RMB103,500,000 - 1391% - 7391%
Development Co., Ltd ("CEC Xi'an") & EREFAA management of electronic AR 103,500,0007

MEETRTEXRERARAA

([PEER])

information technology
industrial parks

hE BHERRMEXRL
ERRER

In the opinion of the directors, the non-controlling interest
of CEC Xi'an is immaterial to the Group and thus the
financial information of CEC Xi'an is not disclosed.

EFRRA TEAR 2 LIRS AEER
TEAEE MLERBEFERRMBER -

PHETEEERAERAF 20155 F8
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—EBEQITARE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014

2015%F 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Beginning of the year F9) 55,508 36,708

Share of post-tax profit JE A R 56 18 4 44,276 18,840

Exchange differences MW ER (4,964) (40)
Transfer to disposal group classified BRI DB RFE
as held for sale (Note 25) ez HE4AR

(H1it25) (94,820) -

End of the year FR = 55,508

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2015 and 2014

are as follows:

Place of establishment

7

Principal place of

Registered and

Bt & R A R20154F K2014F 12 A318 2 515 40

Interest held

Name and type of legal entity operation and activities paid-in capital PR

£ RYBERAREE FTEREHERES AMRERES 2015 2014

Hainan Resort Software PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and management of RMB 160,000,000 40% 40%
Community Investment ~ F B BREFRH electronic information technology AR #160,000,0007T

and Development Co., Ltd

("Hainan Investment”)
BEERRTEREER

BRAR ([BERE])

industrial parks

PE EFEERMERECRRRER

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

19. R—HEEERATRRE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014

20155 20144

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Beginning of the year F1 21,338 22,359

Share of post-tax loss JE(LBR TR BB (2,571) (942)

Exchange differences MEHZER (1,146) (79)
Transfer to disposal group classified HED DR RFEE
as held for sale (Note 25) HEZHERT

(Bat25) (17,621) -

End of the year FR - 21,338
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Cont'd)

19.

Particulars of the joint venture at 31 December 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

19. R—EREQXARE (&)

&2 ARIN2015F K2014F12 4318 2515 M
T:

7

Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and Interest held

Name and type of legal entity ~ operation and activities paid-in capital FrisiER
8 BIBERAFAEE TEQENHRER dfREREX 2015 2014
Guangxi CEC Future PRC, limited liability company ~ PRC, development and sale of properties RMB200,000,000 28.9% 28.9%

Investment Land Co,, Ltd Bl R EF A7 RE MR ERRHE A& #200,000,0007C

(“Guangxi Future Land")
ERPERREEES

BRAT

(TERRREZE])
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. AIHHEESREE

ASSETS
Year ended 31 December
BZ1R2A3MBLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Beginning of the year F 9] 116,622 2,544
Exchange differences N ER (8,276) 492
Additions 0 759,939 328,138
Disposals HE (676,884) (214,552)
Transfer to disposal group classified EED D ARE

as held for sale (Note 25) &z HE A7

(Htzt25) (41,777) -

End of the year FR 149,624 116,622

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

AL ESREERREIATERE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015%12A318 2014412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Unlisted: F¥ETH:

Wealth management products (Note (a)) Bt =EEIRER (H#1it(a)) 147,237 114,087
Equity investment (Note (b)) RIERE (HiEm)) 2,387 2,535
149,624 116,622

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERITRERE:
Current assets mENE E 147,237 114,087
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,387 2,535
149,624 116,622
FRETFEEERARAR 2015FFH (127
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. HEEESHMEE (&)
ASSETS (Cont'd)

(@  The wealth management products are issued () HEEEEMIBHPEEERITET ZF
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth VEEEBEEMIOARARIERFL IR I
management products are principal protected and NARBHEEBNT1E23EA B -
with non-guaranteed return, denominated in RMB REREZARBENE2ERHHTR
and with terms ranging from 1 month to 3 months. o mERMEE -

The fair value of these investments was determined
with reference to the statements provided by the
counterparties.

(b)  The equity investment represents unlisted equity (b)y MEREEE-—FKPBIKIZZIELTAF
interest in a company established in the PRC and are Wik AR BRZEEEREIUNUSA
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet WMiHER aBGFNARERARK
date, as these assets do not have a quoted market MEEEEBHFTZEBENAEE AR
price, the range of reasonable fair value estimates EEBRKABBERE -
is significant and the possibilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

21. INVENTORIES 21. ®EH

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12A318 2014412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Work in progress E 8 69,413 68,839

Finished goods RN 67,536 179,743

Properties under development Y - 205,330

Land use rights held for sale FHEHE 2 T (E A - 593

136,949 454,505

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$713,487,000 (2014:
HK$781,238,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories of HK$11,964,000
(2014: HK$12,925,000) has been credited to cost of sales.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EFRHEMERTE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
20155128318 2014F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Current B
Trade receivables =) A& 838,186 643,871
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (c)) B RERAE (B iE(C)) (6,645) (6,647)
Trade receivables — net B 5 RWGRIA 55 831,541 637,224
Other receivables from third parties HAihfEUWE = 018 7,545 62,083
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (d)) DB B (KAt () (62) (19,760)
Other receivables from HEmElhE=1H
third parties — net RIE—F5 7,483 42,323
Other receivables from related parties (Note 34)  EH b fE Uk BE B A - 308
(K1a234) 3 23,978
Undeducted input value-added tax RAOBR A E TR IR BT 7.336 4,451
Entrusted loan to a third party (Note (e)) WYE=ZAZ
ZRER (HizE) - 101,411
Amount due from the other venturer of EUREAAKREEZ
Guangxi Future Land B—EEFRIE = 21,919
Prepayments and deposits AR RIERIES 2,746 18,639
849,109 849,945
Non-current FERE
Entrusted loan to LY —MEERRZ
an associate (Note (f)) EXER(KZED) - 507,054
Prepayment for acquisition of Wb — Rl @ A A
a subsidiary (Note 35) ZTEN A (B i35) 68,175 -
68,175 507,054
917,284 1,356,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables of the Group approximated
their fair values.

Other than the entrusted loans to an associate and a
third party, trade and other receivables were unsecured
and interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of
HK$102,395,000 (2014: HK$55,958,000) (Note 34).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31 December
2015 and 2014 are denominated in the following
currencies:

22. ESRHEMEBEWRIER (&)

M2015F K20145F 128318 "EB 2B 5 K H
KRB RMEEENABERE -

BT HBERARREZFZ2EXTERIIN:
B REMEBRREBEBHAERBRE B FTA
BORKAKELEBAN Z BB ATE S HIE
745102,395,0005% 7T (20144F : 55,958,000/ 7T )
(B15%34) »

AEBMR2015F K2014F12A3MB 28 5 R A
o FEW R TE IR S E| DT

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2015128318 2014412H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Renminbi AR 915,254 1,354,945
Hong Kong dollars ABIT 2,030 2,054
917,284 1,356,999
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e M HRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EFRHMEBWE (&
(Cont'd)

(@) For the design and sale of integrated circuit chips (@ BEXRBEECAZRAREEEBMS
operation, the majority of the Group's sales are with AEEZHERSMN 2 EEHR30AE35
credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining H HAHERBERERRXNEDE - Mt
amounts are due immediately after the delivery EFEERMEXECERLEEELM
of goods. For the development and management T A-RIEREEBAEBETEE
of electronic information technology industrial Hy o fﬁ%&ﬁi\mr‘ﬂﬁ Iﬁ’jﬁﬁfﬁ%}&”&m
parks operation, there are generally no credit term 18 (FBR A E 45 ) 831,541,000 7T (2014
available for rental income. Included in trade and F12A31H :637,224,000%8 ) * EER
other receivables are trade receivables (net of WAERBBHHRE ST :
provision for impairment) of HK$831,541,000 (31
December 2014: HK$637,224,000) and their ageing
analysis based on revenue recognition date is as
follows:

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015128318 2014412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Current to 30 days 30BA 183,035 220,542

31-60 days 31HZ=60H 171,545 185,548

Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ER1FER 471,198 205,232

Over 1 year B3 5,763 25,902

831,541 637,224
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 It F &

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESRHEMEWKE &)
(Cont'd)

(b)  The trade receivables which were past due but (b)  F2015F12A318 - 2@ B EEE 2
not impaired amounted to HK$261,028,000 at 31 H 5 MW KT8 A261,028,000% 7T (2014
December 2015 (2014: HK$146,649,000). These F 146,649,000/ 7T) ° it F B 5 E WK
related to a number of customers with no history REXLEYRERARIBLBR I TFE#R
of default, the ageing analysis of these trade BRI O OT
receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12A318 2014412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 30 days 30BN 125,720 70,168

31 - 60 days 31HZ£60H 73,686 38,238

Over 60 days and within 1 year 60 LA ER1FER 55,859 30,916

Over 1 year B3 5,763 7,327

261,028 146,649

(0 At 31 December 2015, trade receivables of () 2015F12A31H - 6,645,0005 7T (2014
HK$6,645,000 (2014: HK$6,647,000) were F 16,647,000/8 7T ) Z B 5 EIGRIA D O
impaired. The individually impaired receivables B-ERENERREETERERNTE
mainly related to certain customers which are in BN BERRR R R LR 5Lk
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. It was W IETRE G T aedem - Bk B 8 H 5T iR
assessed that these receivables are not expected to SERBERE-
be recovered and thus full impairment provision was
provided against them.

Movements in the provision for impairment on the AEEBSRWHIBRERE 2 ZFEHHT
Group's trade receivables are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Beginning of the year F1 6,647 45,308

Impairment provision/(reversal of impairment) B, (BE) 401 (38,340)

Exchange differences PE X ZRE (403) (321)

End of the year FR 6,645 6,647
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e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12318 It F &

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EFNRHEHMEWKIE (&)
(Cont'd)

(d) At 31 December 2015, other receivables of (d)  M2015F12H831H " 62,0004 71 (2014
HK$62,000 (2014: HK$19,760,000) were impaired 119,760,000/ 70 ) < E b FEU G IB E
and full impairment provision was provided against BEYEHHEFIRZERERE A5E
them. Movements in the provision for impairment Hith EURIBERERE 2 BT -
on the Group's other receivables are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET

Beginning of the year F4) 19,760 9,150

(Reversal of impairment)/impairment provision BB (BEL) B (1,073) 10,120

Exchange differences PEH =% (1,445) 490

Transfer to disposal group classified EEHBRHE

as held for sale (Note 25) ez HE4AR
(Hfat25) (17,180) -
End of the year FR 62 19,760
(e)  As at 31 December 2014, the entrusted loan to a (e)  M2014F12A3MB B FE=H2ZxE

third party was secured and bore interest at 20%
per annum, which was fully settled in 2015.

On 24 July 2014, CEC Technology entered into
an entrustment agreement with China Electronics
Financial Co., Ltd ("CEC Finance”) in relation
to the provision of an entrusted loan in the
principal amount of RMB400 million (equivalent
to HK$507,054,000) for a term of two years
commencing from 24 July 2014 and ending on 23
July 2016, and at an interest rate of 9% per annum
by CEC Technology to Hainan Investment, a 40%
associate of CEC Technology, with CEC Finance
acting as the lending agent. 60% of the RMB400
million entrusted loan has been secured by a share
pledge granted by the shareholders holding the
remaining 60% equity interest in Hainan Investment
over 43.64% equity interest in Hainan Investment.
As at 31 December 2015, the entrusted loan was
not repaid and was transferred to disposal group
classified as held for sale (Note 25).

A BEMAMIEF F E20%:T B Z KA
ER2015F 2 HE T -

R2014F7H248 - P ERHEPEEFH
BERETAR ([REYFH])TLELE
B Ei FEREUTRENFIEABER
BAMEAO%HLE DR BEREREASS
M (8201497 H24 B B0 201647
A23B#&1E)  RFEFERI%ZASEAA
R#4008 &7t ($851507,054,0007% 7T )
ZETLER 60 MARELI00EETET
EXHEFE SR EHRT0%R AR Z
MR 2 BFIRE43.64% AR 2 I
D EHIEAEI - R2015F12A318 %
ZHAERHAREBE YEREIHEAFE
HEZHEMRR (H225) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

23. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND 23. EHiTERRRE
INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155%12A31H 20149F12831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Short-term deposits (Note (a)) REER (Hit@))
At banks RITHTF 1,560,204 3,030,835

At other financial institutions EMP e SET
— A related party (Note 34) — @A AL (B i34) - 25,353
1,560,204 3,056,188
Short-term investments (Note (b)) RMERE (HiEb)) 286,471 202,822
1,846,675 3,259,010

(b)

134

Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks or
other financial institutions with original maturity
over 3 months. The effective interest rate on these
deposits at 31 December 2015 was 1.86% (2014:
2.45%) per annum.

Short-term investments represent investments
in certain wealth management products issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with guaranteed return. They are denominated
in RMB and with original maturity ranging from
3 months to 6 months. The effective interest rate
on these investments at 31 December 2015 was
3.50% (2014: 4.42%) per annum.

(a)

RFERNERIBAABIEANLEZ
RITHRE M BT R2015F12
A31H ZEGHRZEBRFFNEE1.86%
(20144 :2.45% ) °

MR E N ERTPEFERTRETZSA
THEEREMZKRE - ZEWEEERE
mIOBRARRELDR TUAAREE
NEEEHB AN F3E6ME A - 7201512
A318 ZEREZEBRETFFEHE3.50%
(20144 1 4.42% ) »
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2. RERBAEEEY

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
20155128318 2014F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cash ik
At banks and on hand RITEF R 141,064 83,681
At other financial institutions H b B R 4517
— A related party (Note 34) — A AL (B 534) 60,686 58,510
201,750 142,191
Short-term deposits (Note (a)) MR (K itE))
At banks RITHEETF 446,972 225,137
At other financial institutions By s sTT
— A related party (Note 34) — @ AL (f1iE34) 47,745 166,806
494,717 391,943
696,467 534,134

(@) Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks or
other financial institutions with original maturity of 3
months or less. The effective interest rate on short-
term deposits at 31 December 2015 was 3.49%
(2014: 2.88%) per annum.

25. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

On 14 December 2015, the Company entered into an
equity interest transfer agreement with Optics Valley Union
Holding Company Limited (“OVU"), an independent third
party and AAA Finance & Investment Limited (“HK3A"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of OVU, for the disposal of
100% equity interest in CEC Technology to OVU and
HK3A for RMB699,854,600 which is to be settled in the
form of 1,058,530,083 new OVU shares (the “Disposal”).
CEC Technology and its subsidiaries (“CEC Technology
Group”) is principally engaged in the development
and management of electronic information technology
industrial parks in the PRC and represents a separate major
line of business of the Group. Upon completion of the
Disposal, CEC Technology will cease to be a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

(a) METFERNERINEBAAIMEASKUTZIR
17 5 B Ath B IS 8 137 5% - PA20155F 12 A 31
H BHGERCERFFNER3.49% (2014
HF:2.88%) o

25. PHAFIEHEZHERARZEE
SEBRORIERE S ¥K

R2015F12 148 » KA B EIE L = 77 e B
BEBRERAR ([HAHBE]) RARBEZEE
MEBAR ZAREHREBRAB ([EB=A])F]
SR REEER G WK EARK699,854,6007T
ERERI100%BRETFRABAEREE=A"T
Z B LA1,058,530,0830% 37 e A Bk A B 1D 4575
([ZEEFE]) FERBEEENBAR ([FE
RMEEl ) FERPREREE T EERNEER
CEERERE URRAEEN —BBHEIYFEE
HoRZHEBETKE  PEREBETEAELA
RlZEEMBRR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

25. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (Cont'd)

As the directors are of the view that it is highly probable
that the completion of the Disposal will take place in
2016, the financial position and financial performance
of CEC Technology Group was presented in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”.

The assets and liabilities related to CEC Technology Group
have been presented as disposal group classified as held
for sale. The assets and liabilities of CEC Technology Group
were measured at its carrying amount, which was lower
than the fair value less costs to sell as at 31 December
2015.

The operation of CEC Technology Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was presented as discontinued
operation in the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2014 and the related disclosure notes have
been re-presented to separate the disclosures relating to
the discontinued operation from that of the continuing
operations.

25. PREARKFELECHEARN ZEE
SEBERECRILRE ZER (7)

HREERRZHEFRZERIBAIRERR2016
FHEE AP ERREBOM BN R P HR
REREFABMBREENESH [FHIEHEMIE
MBEEMERIEREZER] 2.

HPBEREEEEENEENBER 29 ADE
BEELE 2 HEAR - M2015F12A318 -
BEREEEZEEMBBERERMENE2 B8
AREREHENANAK-

FEREEEHZE2015F12A318 IEFE 2 %75
REEUMBERRCEHERIEKEZEFBEY &
F2014F12A31HIEFE 2 FEREREEGEESR
mRER AREABEWNTESE CEBELE Y
¥BoRAEE UHERIEKEZEKED -
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25. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 25. PEABELEZHLEMARNZEE
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD SEBRCRIERE ¥ (7)
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (cont'd)

(@)  Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale: (a) PDHEABELREZHEARNZEE:

31 December
2015
2015%12A31H
HK$'000
FET

Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R R 19,936
Investment properties KEME 565,713
Land use rights held for self-use Bz T AR 228
Intangible assets BILEE 11
Investment in an associate R—EBERRRE 94,820
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERAIKRE 17,621
Deferred tax assets RIAEFRIEE E 30,653
728,982

Current assets REBEE

Inventories o=y 288,484
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H b B GRIE 756,474
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEsMmEE 41,777
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREFEY 156,323
1,243,058

Total assets EEHE 1,972,040

(b)  Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale: (b) HDERFELHEZHEMAFZAEE:

31 December
2015
2015%12A31H
HK$'000
FET

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 29,005

Current liabilities REaE

Advances from customers XPETEN KA 22,363
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A FE A FUIE 98,641
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 901,573
Income tax payable FET RS T3R8 67,173
1,089,750
Total liabilities BEHEE 1,118,755
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

25. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 25.

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATION (Cont'd)

(0 The results of the discontinued operation are set out ()

below:

BARFFELEZ
BEREALRE

Tﬂjﬁ

V)
/ I

e 4
«(%Z

ERERECEB2REMT

ARl BE
=% #)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEREZEK 2
discontinued operation REERR (FHB)
Revenue A 13,291 5,339
Cost of sales $HE AR (4,025) (492)
Gross profit ER 9,266 4,847
Other income and gains — net H AW A Rz — %5 161,255 42,866
Selling and marketing costs $HE T T 5 HE BB R AR (4,116) (7,943)
Administrative expenses 1T (29,920) (50,318)
Operating profit/(loss) ReERR S (FE) 136,485 (10,548)
Finance income A& WA 5,131 15,029
Finance costs =N (24,627) (24,269)
Finance costs — net RhE R A —FEE (19,496) (9,240)
Share of result of an associate E(E— R E AR EE 44,276 18,840
Share of result of a joint venture i RN ¥ (2,571) (942)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBAER, (EE) 158,694 (1,890)
Taxation I8 (25,006) (3,817)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIERE XK
discontinued operation TEEBH, (FHE) 133,688 (5,707)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued TCRILEE %2
operation attributable to: REERF, (FHE)
BER:
Owners of the Company RKAGERFEE 117,064 (2,638)
Non-controlling interests FEFE I HE 2 16,624 (3,069)
133,688 (5,707)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

25. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 25. PHEABIEHEZHERARZEE
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD SEBRCRIEEE XK (&)
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (Cont'd)

(d)  The cash flows of the discontinued operation are set (d) BRIELEZEBZBEE2RENT:

out below:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Cash flows from discontinued operation ERIEREZERZ
ReRE
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating wEFESEE (A2
activities & /558 356,586 (229,464)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RERBELE/ (FTA)Z
activities BeFe 69,449 (468,244)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEE (A EEXZ
activities W FHE (430,762) 810,805
Net cash flows FRERE (4,727) 113,097
26. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 26. BRAKRE
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
SREEETZ
EER
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE EERTRER R R RE CH)
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fik Tk THx THT TET
At 1 January 2014 201451818 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 272,255 289,171
Placing of new shares (=i} - 338312 3,383 532,900 536,283
At 31 December 2014, 20145128318
1 January 2015 and 201551A18 &
31 December 2015 2015%12831H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454

hHEEFEEERERAT 20155 F8H (139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
(Cont'd)

On 25 September 2014, 338,312,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were placed at a price of HK$1.63
per share to independent third parties. The net proceeds
of the placing, after the deduction of the placing
commission and other related expenses, amounted to
HK$536,283,000. The new ordinary shares ranks pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

27. UNSECURED CORPORATE BONDS

26, BMAR&E (&)

R2014F9825H AR BN ERK1.63B L&
338,312,000/ F R EE0.01 BT 2 %D FIB L E
ZHo-MEBBEZAEREFHE (EHNKBEEM
© M E A iEREF %) A536,283,000/8 T #TE
BREDETCRELTEARETAERZER -

27. BERLEES

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FATT

At 1 January R1A18 3,436,724 -
Addition 1 90 - 3,421,244
Interest and issue cost amortised 25 ) B BT RN 23,300 21,370
Exchange differences JE N AERE (201,545) (5,890)
At 31 December M12831H 3,258,479 3,436,724

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750,000,000. The issue price of the Bonds was
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds and the Bonds
will mature on 16 January 2017. The Bonds bear interest
at the rate of 4.70% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears. The Bonds are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The initial fair value of the Bonds was determined based on
the residual amounts of the principal after the deduction
of issuance costs. The Bonds are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using an effective interest rate of 5.44%
per annum. The carrying amount of the Bonds as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 approximated its fair value.

M2014F 18168 ' A RRIEHITASRBEAARE
2,750,000,0007T 7220174 B B #94.70 % £ K #H
Bh -ZEHFZBTEAZESFARETE Z2100%
20171 A 16 BEIH - ZEHIRFFEAL.70%5T
B UEBY¥FRERIN ZEFREBHER
SHBERAA LT

ZEFZEVNARENREMNBREBEITIRNAE 2
R Ao METE ZEFHBUAEBRFEN X
5.44% R # 55 A AR B BR - 7020154 2014512 A
3B ZEFZEmMEREARBERS-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

28. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 28. EZLEBUSEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATT
Beginning of the year F19) 137,742 181,342
Exchange differences [EH =% (4,976) (796)
Additions 0 31,050 19,821
Credited to the income statement it (109,801) (62,625)
End of the year FR 54,015 137,742

Amount mainly represented various subsidies granted
by and received from local government authorities for
financing various research and development projects
conducted by the Group. These subsidies will be recognised
as income over the period necessary to match with the cost
that they are intended to compensate.

ZRRAETBRAANEKEMERFAZRREB ML
BB 2 S TEAE) - it B IR X &
B2 M2 AR AR 2 AR L 2 B
RN

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EFRHMENRIE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12A318 2014412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables Z 5 e IR 156,718 227,685
Other payables to related parties (Note 34) ot FE A~ BB A £ 5)08
(Bit34) 57,513 63,151
Salary and welfare payables ANERT 40,534 71,413
Other taxes payables Hh e~ 1118 19,315 11,141
Other payables and accrued expenses H b eI R TEIR E A
(Note (a)) (W1it(@)) 170,614 227,590
444,694 600,980
(@)  Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (@ HiENFIERBIREREZRENBRH

represented payables for software usage fees for
the purposes of research and development and sales
commissions and accrual for interest payable on the
Bonds.

FMAEBNZRHERERFEERS AU
KZEH 2 BNAFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'a) 29. EFRHMEBEMARE#)

At 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the Group's 20156 12A31H AEBESENRBEER
trade payables mainly based on the date of invoices are as REZEBHZERESTAT :

follows:

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

2015%12A318 2014912H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAETT

Current to 30 days 30EA 73,459 87,754
31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 44,061 48,697
Over 60 days 60H A £ 39,198 91,234
156,718 227,685

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$74,845,000

(2014: HK$141,103,000) (Note 34).

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables of the Group approximated their

TT) (B1iE34) °

AAESEMNTEEGRAZENBEBALES
FRIE /74,845,000 7T (20144 : 141,103,000/

M2015FE K2014FE 128310 AEEB B RA
tEMZEZ EAEEE AR EMRSE-

fair values.
30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30, RITRHMEE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155%12A31H 20149F12831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATT
Bank borrowings repayable: RITIEE 2B
Within 1 year —FR = 66,044
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —F A HETBBMRFE = 1,266,418
- 1,332,462
Less: Amount due within 1 year included in B CETARBBER —F
current liabilities AEEE S - (66,044)
Amount due after 1 year —F & F AR FIE - 1,266,418
Secured (Note) 2 (A1) - 1,332,335
Unsecured i - 127
- 1,332,462

142  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Cont'd)

Bank and other borrowings were arranged at fixed and
variable rates. The effective interest rates of the Group's
bank and other borrowings at 31 December 2014 ranged
from 2.085% to 6.55% per annum.

The bank and other borrowings were all denominated in
RMB and their carrying amounts approximated their fair

values.

Note:  The bank and other borrowings were secured by the following

30. RITREMBE (&)

RITREMEETNIREB MFEE LT -72014F
128318  AEBRTREMEENERFF R
N F2.085%%6.55% 7 [

RITREMEEIUAARBE MEKREER
HRAnERE-

Hrat: RITREMER NN TEEFRR

assets:
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12A31H 2014412 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Investment properties TEYHE - 156,781
Land use rights held for self-use B A2 L fE R - 1,438
Land use rights held for sale FHER & 2 Lib (5 R - 593
Short-term deposits MHITF - 1,305,856
- 1,464,668
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

31. REFRAZEE

Year ended 31 December

31. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation (including BRELAR A (B
discontinued operation) BRI E 2 ET) 351,775 216,174
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation of property, EN =5
plant and equipment RETE 24,364 18,892
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEH 29,869 21,824
Interest income M EWA (152,407) (131,107)
Interest expenses MESZH 202,685 205,723
Fair value changes on investment properties WEMEN RN BEES (95,649) (23,859)
Amortisation of land use rights held for self-use B F3 2 4 b {# F3 4 4 5 1,612 400
Share of result of an associate i /NI (44,276) (18,840)
Share of result of a joint venture B —fEE & QRIS 2,571 942
Reversal of impairment for trade and B 5 REAEWRIEZ
other receivables VIREREYE (672) (28,220)
Reversal of provision for inventories FE 7 EERED (11,964) (12,925)
307,908 249,004
Changes in working capital LEEREY
Inventories FE 41,036 (60,342)
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M ERFIE (566,274) (170,039)
Deferred government grants 5% JE BT 4 B (83,727) (43,600)
Advances from customers EFPEFMNHIEA 5,289 (21,489)
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M FE A I8 (57,645) 24,666
Cash used in operations KEFTRAZES (353,413) (21,800)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

32. COMMITMENTS 32.
(@) Operating lease commitments (a)
(i) The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease (i)

payments under non-cancellable operating leases for
factories and office premises are as follows:

Z%
BEEEAR
REERETARRZBERFREDE

ZIBEHEMAR KRN 2 REHER
THARRRIT

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

20155128318 2014F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Not later than one year 19K 9,917 9,070
In the second to fifth year E2FEEFESFN 1,885 554
11,802 9,624

(i) The Group's future aggregate minimum lease rentals (i) AEBEREBEINABRZEEMEZLER

receivable under non-cancellable operating leases
for the investment properties are as follows:

EMaNARRENR 2 ZIEBREHALT

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2015%12A318 2014912H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAET

Not later than one year 1R 15,476 3,593
In the second to fifth year E2FEZEFESFN 65,827 3,181
Over five years HBE5 5 62,946 94
144,249 6,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

32. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Capital commitments

The Group had the following outstanding capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

32. RIE (&)
(b) BEAREE

31 December

AEERBERRADRBITHERAELT:

31 December

2015 2014
2015%12H318 2014412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B R B -
— Acquisition of 95.64% equity interest in — U BE LI SR
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit BRAEREERT
Co., Ltd (“Huahong") (Note 35) ([ZE4T ])95.64% %
Az (fat35) 788,016 -
— Subscription of 1,491,469,917 — R 881,491,469,917%
new shares of OVU AR E RN 1,193,176 -
1,981,192 -

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability at

31 December 2015 (2014 nil).

33. REEE

& (20144 : &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 34.

BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions in

the ordinary course of business with related parties during

the year:

(a) Significant transactions with related parties (a) EBEBEBALIZEARS

BB A LR 5Z KRG

BRAGEMBREREMTNERENRS MG
BN RAFEAREERBEXEEES HEEH
BATHETT TISHERRS:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
() Continuing operations () FELEZEK (E5)
Companies under common THEEFEE
control of CEC HEZEHZ QA
Sale of products THE E G 185,401 172,652
Purchase of goods and services HRIEE MR R 293,476 471,949
Interest income B U A 1,766 4,124
Interest expenses MEZH 2,340 -
Rental expenses MexH 973 -
Property management fee MEERE 7,131 -
Fees and commissions for financial services MERGEcFEE
P yikn - 509
Catering service fee BRREE 878 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. BEBMAIXRFIRESG(E)

BALANCES (Cont'd)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties (a) EHEBEBALZEAXRS (£)

(Cont'd)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A310LLEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)
(i) Discontinued operation (i) ERIERE £ (&%)
CEC FEETEE
Guarantee fee BRE - 354
Companies under common THHEFEE
control of CEC HEEHZ AT
Rental income Hae A 36 -
Interest income FE WA 3,810 1,047
Interest expenses F B 3,017 15,873
Property management fee MEERE 1,692 2,903
Fees and commissions for financial services MBREFEE
¥k 268 53
Addition of borrowing from CEC Finance MIERBEYKEE 285,658 195,621
Repayment of borrowing to CEC Finance BETEUBEE 285,658 562,883
Associate /N
Interest income LB WA 47,047 11,087
Entrusted loan ZEER 37,260 507,054
Joint venture X PN
Rental income e A 162 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. BBMALTXRERER (&)
BALANCES (Cont'd)

(b)  Significant balances with related parties (b) HEBALZEKRLGESH

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015%12A8318 20149F12H31H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CEC FEETE
Other receivables H b fE U 3R I8 52 -
Other payables H A & 1 5RIB 57,531 61,126
Companies under common SHEEFEE
control of CEC HEZEFZAE
Trade receivables g 5 W FRIE 102,395 55,958
Other receivables H b R U IR 3,561 3,696
Deposits 7 238,012 250,669
Trade payables 2B 5 ENIA 74,845 141,103
Other payables F A JE 1~ 5RIB 1,681 951
Associate = F/NE|
Entrusted loan ZEEX 513,261 507,054
Other receivables H b B W k1B = 20,282
Other payables H fth F& 1~ 5RIB 896 1,074
Joint venture k-G
Other receivables H A & SR IB 2,459 -
Other payables H fh fE T RRIB 13 —

BERRREERRW BN LR A L&

Other than the deposits and entrusted loan which are
interest bearing, the above balances with related parties
were unsecured, interest-free and settled according to the
contract terms.

AEER LEARESRIGREE-

() Key management compensation () TEEBEAEM=

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe EZBNEYREF 7,677 4,611
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIH R 705 347
8,382 4,958
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 26 June 2015 and 27 August 2015, Huada Electronics
and the shareholders of Huahong entered into certain
equity transfer agreements, pursuant to which Huada
Electronics has agreed to acquire 95.64% equity interest
in Huahong for a total consideration of RMB717.3
million (the “Acquisition”). At 31 December 2015, Huada
Electronics paid a deposit of RMB57,115,000 (equivalent to
HK$68,175,000) for the Acquisition. The Acquisition was
completed in February 2016.

35. MRER

M2015F6A26H K2015F8A27H  #E K E ¥
B CIRRFIE TRESE DS Bt 2

ETRENERBARE717368 TREE
i1 2 95.64% R Atz (W EIE]) - R20155F
12A31H ERETELANBEEIMNARE
57,115,0007T ( {8 168,175,000/87T) 2184 °
W EED R20165F2 A5 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

36. ARAALAEERBRZEN

36. INFORMATION ABOUT BALANCE
SHEET OF THE COMPANY

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015512A318 201412 A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ER 2,412 1,157
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIKRE 17 1,792,992 1,309,185
1,795,404 1,310,342
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H e M FUR 1,579,362 1,415,863
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESMEE 45,358 -
Short-term deposits and investments REERRERE 630,664 1,887,870
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY 448,608 153,493
2,703,992 3,457,226
Total assets EEAR 4,499,396 4,767,568
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EZKEE
Equity R
Share capital and premium PR R (B 825,454 825,454
Reserves & (a) 302,133 400,523
Total equity RSB 1,127,587 1,225,977
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Unsecured corporate bonds BEALERS 3,258,479 3,436,724
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B9 REMENRIE 91,411 84,965
Income tax payable FES TS 7 208 21,919 19,902
113,330 104,867
Total liabilities BEAHE 3,371,809 3,541,591
Total equity and liabilities EaREEEE 4,499,396 4,767,568

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
board of directors on 30 March 2016 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dong Haoran &% %
Director &%

KRB EEBBREEEEN2016F3A30H

- WA MIIATRERE:

Liu Hongzhou 24T M
Director %
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 12 A318 L F &

36. INFORMATION ABOUT BALANCE
SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(@) Reserves of the Company

36. ABALAEERBERZEN

(%)

(a) AT 2B

Retained

earnings/

(accumulated

Translation  Contributed losses)
reserve surplus REEA/ Total

B RS BAR® (ZER) &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEL
At 1 January 2014 201451818 - 396,391 42,647 439,038
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE (4,276) - 16,508 12,232
Payment of dividend TR B - (50,747) - (50,747)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 (4,276) 345,644 59,155 400,523
At 1 January 2015 20151818 (4,276) 345,644 59,155 400,523
Total comprehensive income FENGEE 26,028 = (71,641) (45,613)
Payment of dividend ERRE - (52,777) = (52,777)
At 31 December 2015 2015128318 21,752 292,867 (12,486) 302,133

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in Section

54 thereof.

RIEBREI1BIFRRE (KER])  ARAZE
BRI NZ R ADERSMEREIRZETHERT

DR T RR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & £2015F 128318 L F &

37. ARAEENMH=

37. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2015 (i) B Z2015F12A831BLEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s ERES (BREAARINEMB AR RHERBEM
services as a director, whether of the Company or its MW S -
subsidiaries:
Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary
Name of director Fee Salary EHt@#If RIRER bonuses Total
EEpg He e HEMEE e WA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Rui Xiaowu RER - - - - - -
Dong Haoran® HERO - - - - 907t 907
Liu Hongzhou BI4T N - 750 10 m 9242 1,855
Xie Qinghua HEE - 750 137 171 9240 1,982
Liu Jinping® R 24 - - - = 24
Chan Kay Cheung RS 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng Bt A 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum® FEMe 100 - - - - 100
524 1,500 147 342 2,755 5,268

m Discretionary bonus as a director of Huada Electronics for the
year 2014 approved and paid in 2015 by Huada Electronics.

@ Discretionary bonus for the year 2014 approved and paid in
2015.

@ Appointed on 12 February 2015.

@ Resigned on 12 February 2015.

®) Appointed on 30 June 2015.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors had waived any emoluments during the year.

)

G

EAFERETESZ Z2014F BB EAN20155
EREFHZRENR-
2014 B IETEAT 201 SR EEHEAZ N2 BE L »

R2015F2 A12B EE(F-
R2015F2 8128 BT -
M2015%F6 A30H E LT -

FR-AEEYEAESMEAMESNE
AEE Y MNBR 2 BEIESMEZME -FA
MEEEREEMME -
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37. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 37. ARQBEENME (&)

COMPANY (Cont'd)
(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2014 (i) EBZE2014F12A31BLFE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s ERES (BREAARINEMB AR RHERBEM
services as a director, whether of the Company or its BB E:
subsidiaries:
Estimated
money value Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme  Discretionary
Name of director Fee Salary Hi@EFIE RIKEF bonuses Total
B4 e e HE%EE i BT Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET TET TET
Rui Xiaowu RER - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 - 750 5 128 2100 1,093
Xie Qinghua HEE - 750 164 167 1,020 2,101
Liu Jinping AEF 200 - - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung R E 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng ipeides 200 - - - - 200
Yin Yongli® FoKkH@ 79 - - - - 79
679 1,500 169 295 1,230 3,873
o Discretionary bonus for the year 2013 approved and paid in ) 2013 F BB IEAL 2014 JE 4% K2 B it -
2014.
@ Resigned on 24 May 2014. @ 201445 B24 B BT -
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IFMBENRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
20155 20144 20134 20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET TET THET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E31) (EH) (E3))
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REX) (E=%) (&) (REFR)  (REEZR)
(i) (ii) (ii) (ii)
Revenue N 1,264,001 1,351,723 1,321,606 1,166,896 1,014,410
Profit for the year attributable to A& E G FBFBER
owners of the Company ARAE=FEE 280,134 170,108 291,966 271,126 103,892
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Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBENRE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December

128310
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
20155 20144 20134 20124 20114F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET FiET FEL FEL
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
=27 (&) (&)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(BERZ) (&8 Z) ('R  (REER) (REHER)
(ii) (ii) (ii)
Total assets BEHE 6,179,157 6,726,268 2,623,028 2,248,606 1,782,685
Total liabilities aEgE (4,904,278)  (5,624,438)  (1,411,212)  (1,230,736)  (1,027,423)
1,274,879 1,101,830 1,211,816 1,017,870 755,262

(i)

156

The operation of China Electronics Technology Development
Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2015 was presented as discontinued operation
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the related disclosure notes have been re-presented to
separate the disclosures relating to the discontinued operation
from that of the continuing operations, as prescribed in
HKFRS 5. Details of which were disclosed in Note 25 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2011,
2012 and 2013 are restated using the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. Details of which were
disclosed in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

0} FEETREHEERATREWNEBRREE2015
FRANBEFEZEBRASBREUBHREE
BERIEEE T EBES] -8 Z=2014F12A318 1F
FEZEARZREGEZERER UREIERS
M e DEBELCE ZEBHFRRE  WIEEE
WIS RS ERIESSATARE B R IEE R 2 ¥15E5 -
BRFHBERAEBEE2015FE12A31BILEE
IRE BTSRRI s 254 75 -

(ii) HZE20115 20124 F2013F 12 A3 B I EE 2 8f
BEMBMENRAEEEESIESRRE S0
2 RAEY - BHAFBEERANEEEE2014512
AR IEFE M BHREM 2. 155 -
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